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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management of KOLIN PHILIPPINES INTERNATIONAL, INC. is responsible for
the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements including the schedules
attached therein, for the years ended December 31, 2O2t and 2020, in accordance with the
prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the company or to cease operaUons, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company,s financial reporting
process.

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the
schedules attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders.

KL Siy & Associates, the independent auditors, appointed by the stockholders, has audited
the financial statements of the Company in accordance with philippine Standards on
Auditing, and in their report to the stockholders, have expressed their opinion on the
fairness of p on upon completion of such audit.

KAT G TSENGDAVID C. GO
Chairman of the Board President

REN S. CHUA YAP
Treasurer
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KL Siy & Associates
Assurince Consrltrn.t TaxatiotrSenices

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Kolin Philippines Intemational, Inc. as

ofDecember 31, 2021, on which we have rendered our report dated Apil12,2022.

1. In compliance with Revenue Regulation V-20, we are stating that we are not related by
consanguinity nor affinity to the president, manager or principal stockholder of the
Company; and the taxes paid or accured by the Company during the year are shou'n in
Note 22.3 Supplementary information in compliance with RRl5 2010.

2. In compliance with SRC Rule 68, we are stating that said company has a total number of
Sixteen (16) stockholders owning one hundred (100) or more shares each.

ktuK,,*
Managing Partner
CPA Certificare No. 45337
BOA Accreditation No. 0668

Effective until March 22,2024
BlR Accreditation No. 07-100131-001-2020

Effective until April 13,2023
IC Accreditation No. 45337 -lC

Effective until Decenfter 31 ,2024
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) Group B

Accreditation No. 45337-BSP
Effective until Decenber 31,2024

TIN No. 303-141-768-000
PTR NO. 8131509, Jarrary 11,2022, Pasig City

Apil 12,2022
Ortigas Center, Pasig City

Unit 1104, Prcstige Tower Condominium, F. Ortigas h. Road, OrtiSas Center, Pasig City 1605

Tel: 8634-7685/7730-3015 E-mail: kathleen.l.siy@klsiyassociates com.ph

The Board of Directors

KOLIN PHILIPPINES INTERNATIONAL, INC
First Cavite Indutrial Estate, Brgy Lankaan, Cavite

KL SIY & ASSOCIATES
BOA Accreditation No. 0668

Effective until March 22,2024
TIN No. 215-665-658-000
BIR Accreditation No. 07- 100131-001-2020
Effective until Apnl B , 2023

IC Accreditation No. 0668-IC (Group B)
Effective until De cember 3l , 2024

Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) Group B
Accreditation No. 0668-BSP
Effective until De cember 3l , 2024



KL Siy & Associates
Assur.trcc Coniultancr'faralionSerrices

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

The Board of Directors

KOLIN PHILIPPINES INTERNATIONAL,
INC.

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Kolin Philippines Intemational, Inc. (the
Company) which comprise the statements of financial position as at December 31, 2021
and 2020, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity
and statements ofcash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements
including a summary of sigrrificant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial condition of the Company as at December 31, 2021 and 2020, and
its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are

independent ofthe Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, the Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and those charged wilh Governance for the Financial
Slatentenls

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with PFRSs, and for such intemal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are fiee from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concem and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
altemative but to do so.

Those charged with govemance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial
reporting process.

Unit I104, Prestige Tower Condominium, F. Onigas Jr. Road, Onigas Center, Pasig City 1605

Tel 8634-'1685/1'730-3015 E-mail: Kathleen.l.siy@klsiyassociates.com.ph

First Cavite Industrial Estate,
Brgy, Lankaan, Cavite



Auditor's Respottsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statenents

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

as a whole are free fiom material misstatement, whether due to fiaud or error, and to issue

an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with PSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions ofusers taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and

maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identifu and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is suffrcient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk ofnot detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
intemal control.
Obtain an understanding of intemal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in t}te circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness ofaccounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by managernent.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis

of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modifo our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date ofour auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concem.
Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content ofthe financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

a

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in intemal control that we identifo during our audit.

We also provide those charged with govemance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirerrents regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Repofi on the Supplementary htformatiort Under Revenue Revenue Regulation 15-

2010

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The supplementary information on taxes, duties and license

fees in Note 22.3 to the financial statements is presented for purposes of filing with the
Bureau of Intemal Revenue and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.

Such information is the responsibility of management. The information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the basic financial statements. In our
opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
financial statements taken as whole.

KL SIY & ASSOCIATES
ROA Accreditation No. 0668

Effective until March 22,2024
TIN No. 21 5-665-658-000
BIR Accreditation No. 07-100131-001-2020

Effective until Apil 23,2023
IC Accreditation No. 0668-IC (Group B)

Effective until December 31,2024
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) Group B

Accreditation No. 0668-BSP
Effective until December 31,2024

By:

/C(,r.< L
KATHLEENMA&VI STV

Managing Partner
CPA Certificate No. 45337
BOA Accreditation No. 0668

Effective until March 22, 2024
BIR Accreditation No. 07-100131-001-2020

Effective until April 1 3, 2023
IC Accreditation No. 45337-lC

Effective until Dec ernber 31 , 2024
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) Group B
Accreditation No. 45337-BSP
Effective until Dec ember 31 , 2024

TIN No. 303-141-768-000
PTR NO. 813 1509, January 1 1, 2022, Pasig City

Apm 12,2022
Otigas Center, Pasig City
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KOLIN PHI LIPPINES INTERNATIONAL, INC.
STATEl\IENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 3I, 202I AND 202O

(Amounts in Philippine Pesos)

2020

CURRENT ASSETS

Financial assets at amortized cost

Cash and cash equivalents

Trade and othcr rcceivables

Investmenls in bonds - short-t€rm

Refimd Asset

Prepayments and other assets

Total Current Ass€ts

3.1. 3.9,5
3.1,3.9,7

3.1,6
3.5,3.6.8

3-2,9

351,17 4329
3t9,484,266

29,993,422

2,412,010

425,510,658

6,200,428

2.412,O1O

566394,6r0
885,424

ASSfTS

TOTAL ASSCl'S

r.140,665,513 t,146,969,055

471,122,449 471.817 ,521

P 1,611j988,362 P 1.618.786,576

P P

1.13,1.197

1e8.217r.!7 52 r.476.r86

46,068,02r

403

s?,433;07e

3.7,26.3

3.1,3.11,16.3,23 ..

',
'i

3.15,25

3.15,25

3.15,25

3-ts,2s

292.966,82r

284.150,190

NONCURRENT ASSETS

Financial assets at amortiz,ed cost

Investment in bonds
Propefiy, Plant and Equipmetrt - net

Iotangiblc Asset

Deferred Tar Asse6

Rental and other deposils

Total Non+urrent Assets

J.T,6
3-3, t1
3.1, 

'23-13,22-2

3.1,13

50,000,000

394,917,936
1,431,408

22543,686
2,226,419

50,000,000

399,519,876

1223,t42
t7,761J45
3,313,058

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities at amorlized cost

Trade and Other Payables

Short-l erm laans

Other Non-trade Payables

lncome Tax Payable

Due to Govemment Ag€ncies

Total currenl liabilities

3.1,3.6, r1
3.1, 16.1

3.1, I5
3.13,4,22

15.2,15.3,15.4

122,565,299
jsg,622,111

r r,695,411

126205,333

369 342228
8,509,850
5,963,462

6,415,313

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
fiDancial liabilities at arnortized cost

Retirement Liability

Irng-Term lrans
Total Non-curent liabilities

-, 36.73t.676 |

18,694.403

555,650,r66

"1,$P,,8 3,5,14,803

2.596212

l0

Paid-up capiial

Addilional paid-in capital

Retahed eamings

sTocKlIot.t)tiRs' t ()tttTY

TOTAL LtABll,It tUS AND STOCKHOLDURS' EQtTITY

r3.591.109 l

7

P lt

2t2l

LIABILITII'S AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUIT}

TOTAI, LTAB -tl tDS

i,I

(

See Notes ao Fi,rancial Sroaements

P t,618,786,576



KOLIN PHILIPPINES INTtrRNATIONAL, INC.
STATEMENTS OF CONIPREHENSIvE INCOIIIE

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 3I, 2O2I AND 2O2O

(Anounts in Philippi,'e Pcsos)

2021

P 1,684,554,914 P

2020

SALES

COST OF SALES AND SERVICES

GROSS PROFIT

OTHER INCOME

Sf,LLING EXPENSES

CENERAL rnd ADMINISTRATM EXPENSE

OTHER EXPENSES

FINANCE COSTS

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

INCOME TAX (EXPENSE) Bf,NEFIT

PROFIT FOR THE Yf,AR

OTHER COMPRf,HENSIVE INCOME - net

Actuarial gain/ (loss) on retirement benelt obligation

lncome tax relating to these items

TOTAL COMPREHENSII'E INCOME

EARNINGS PER SIIAR.E

12,721,552

3,i 8l.lt9l
lt.l:8.217 I

2.498,47 |

3.6, 4.1 ,t 7

3.6, l8

| .7 63 ,473 ,514

1.3t9.741,N4: ))(

t9

20

2I

T9

387,874,435

r 5,,195,66r

72,356.7811 (

207.187,62' ) (

-(
7.439,205 ){

433,729,672

26,151362

lu),843.21I )

190,7r 8.949 )

2t9,284 \

t0.161.941t6.t

3.1j,221 (

25.3

116,386,,182 t57,937,649

41t,0,{4.t t4 )22,111.924 )(

94,244,558 109.893,535

)
9,515,672 5.112(r.j66 )

P 103,790,2-10 P t04.063.769

3.11,21 P P 2.20

See io,es ro Finonciol
\..)

.\'

,\rrds

( l.?96.6tt0.179

(

(

(

(

'.,.'

,
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KOLI\ PIIILIPPI\ES TNTERNATIONAL. INC,
STATENIF,NTS OF CASH TI,O\I'S

FOR THfYIARS ENT}ED DECEMBI]R]I.2O2I AND 2O2O

(Anoun^ in Philiwia. Pens)

20tl

CASH TI,OWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIT:S

Depdiation expen*
ADortianid expen$
Pdsim Expens
Prcvisim fd cred l6*s
Prcvision for inYolory ob$les4..
U@lized forex (!aD) los
RMver)' of bad debts

Opc6ring inoft (los) befoB wotirg capMl chages
D@rce (lnftar) in Ec.ivables
D&Eas (lnma*) in irv@to.y
Deftas (lnma*) h efird asser

Defta* (lnftas) in oficr asets
Decrca* (lncreas) in prepaymmt 4d othd asis
ln@se (Decrea*) in rad. payables

In@se (Dedeas) ir other payables

Cash go@td fion oFEtims

P 6,:rE6.4E2 P t51.937.649

11, 
'E,2t

21,26.3

9, t8
5, l9

5, 19

!E.7t4.159
E65.512

6.898.217

t,02t.455

24,075280
616,588

6,454,1l I
215,136

2,3?6,578

2t9284
3,1t5.2tt2 )

,lt.07.1)

.t.!16.811 ,

140.597.927

36.155,5-11I
140,953.952

1,7E2,241 |
5,115.00.1)

t6,540.904 )

tE3,9lE,94l
I89,351,664
61.4S4.t l0 )

32.469

7.327.767
ll,8 [,034 )

16,326,896

2la,9lE,t65

22,t41,924

321,664.590

5l ?l t.2l(, )Cdh Daid fq incone la.s

Na Cas[ (Us€d in) Prcvided by operdtmS .crivitics

Nel Cash Provided by (ued i!) irv.stins acliviii.s

)(
192.116.211 271.951.175

CASII FLOWS IROM INVf,STTNG ACTIYITIES

Acquisiti6 ofDrcFny aDd cquipo.d
Acauisitid of inlasible
Prceds too (&quistr@ o0 h.ld ro Mruity inv.s66c-Tim DcDosit

Acquisitid of shqt lem i.!6rlmts - bdds
De.lte (IlcEase) in othr M{utml6s.ls

5, t9
ll
t2
6

6
13

{J46t24
It,t t2r19 ) r

r.076.?7E ) (

1,610,691

30.,169.024 )
686,?{t )

51,3?0,0m
19,99.r.821 )

t,0t6,219 2,85:.06t )

22.072,861

16.1

5.. n"o1?s ,, Finan.iut Stdtchcn^.

16.1

25.5

38.4-16.322 ) (

E0,000.000 ) (

13E,676,27t 1.01?.597.7m

I,083,388,062 )

E0-000.000 )

Nd C.sh Pu/i(H by (L!€d in) in!.sring tcivniG

Etret of f@+E dctEca eri6 (l,os)

NET INCR.EASE (DECR.EASE) IN CASH

CASII AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASII AT END OF }TAR

14t.074

54J07,50E

29\W.a2t

___ulJ9q?lf l

2 r9.284 )

t4E,014,6E5

111,952,t37

2020

CASH TLOWS FROM TINANCING ACTIVITIES ACTIVITIES

Shon-terD bollwi.es

Shqt-t@ tM@ilgs
Casb divid,e&ts paid

5 I-l!2:,LZ!!2! P 2229@P\



KOLIN PHILIPPINES INTERItiATIONAL. INC.
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2021 nd 2020
(Amounts in Plilippine Pesos)

Note 1 - CORPORATE INFORI{ATION

Kolin Philippines International, Inc. (the "Company"), u'as incorporated and registered with
the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on htly 24, 1995 ulder the laws of the

Philipphes with SEC Registration No. 45095007068. Its primary purpose is to engage in,

operate, conduct and maintain the business of manufacturing, importing, assembling, selling,

or otherwise dealing in wholesale such products as: air - conditioning units, television sets and

other electronic equipment or product of similar nature, and any and all equipment, materials,

supplies, used or employed in or related to the manufacture of such finished products.

On April 24, 2018, the SEC issued the certificate on Amended Adicles of Incorporation ofthe
Company on the increase of authorized capital stock from P240,000,000 divided into

24,000,000 shares with par value of Ten pesos (Pi0.00) to P500,000,000 divided into

50,000,000 shares.

The registered office ofthe Company is located at FCIE Barrio Langkaan, Dasmarinas, Cavite

and has total employees offive huodred forty nine (549) and five hundred eighty+even (587)

as of Decernber 31,2021 anld 2020, respectively. The Company also has seven (7) service

centers and one (i) warehouse plant.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 3 1 , 202 1 (including the

comparatives for the year ended December 31, 2020) were authorized for issue by the

Company's Board of Directors on April 11, 2022. The Board of Directors is empowered to

make revisions afler said date ofissue.

NOTE 2 _ BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

(a) Presentation of Financial Statements

The Company's fmancial statements are presented in Philippine peso, which is the Company's

functional and presentation currency. A11 financial information presented in Philippine Peso is

rounded to the nearest peso except when otherwise stated.

Assets and liabilities are presented in the Statements of Iinancial Position in a

current/noncurrent di stinction.

The Statements of Comprehensive Income presents an analysis of expenses using a

classifrcation based on thet functions.

The Company changes the presentation of its financial statements only if the changed

presentation provides fufomration that is reliable and more relevant to its users and the revised

structu€ is likely to continue so that comparability is not impaired.

I



(b) Statement of Compliance

The financial statements ofthe Company have been prepared in accordance with Philippine
Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). PFRS are adopted by the Financial Reporting Standards

Council (FRSC) from the pronouncements issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards

Board (IASB).

PFRS consist ol

(i) PFRS - corresponding to Intemational Financial Reporting Standards;
(ii) Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) corresponding to Intemational Accounting

Standards; and,
(iii)Interpretations to existing standards representing interpretations issued by the

Intemational Financial Repo(ing [nteryretations Committee (IFRIC), formerly the
Standi-ng Interpretations Committee (SIC), of the IASB which are adopted by the
FRSC.

(c) Basis of Measurement

(d) Use ofJudgments and Estimates

The preparation of the Company's financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts therein and in the
accompanying notes. The estimates and assumptions used are based upon managernent's
evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the Company's financial
statements. Actual results could differ fiom such estimates, judgrtents and estimates are

continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of futwe events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Estimates and judgnrents are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and

other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances.

Changes in Accounting Policies

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those ofthe previous financial year, except
for the adoption of certain new PFRS and amendments to existing PFRS and PAS which
became effective for current period on or after January I , 2021 .

The Company changes an accounting policy only ifthe change is (a) required by a Standard or
an lnterpretation; or (b) results in the financial statements providing reliable and more relevant
information about the effects of transactions, other events or conditions on the Company's
financial position, financial performance or cash flows.
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These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the
revaluation ofcertain financial assets. The financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis
of accounting and on the assumption that the Company is a going concern and will continue
operation for the foreseeable future.



Impoct of New Amendments and Intcrpretations to Existing Standards

There are new and revised accounting standards, amendments and irlterpretations to existing
standards that have been published by IASB and adopted by FRSC which are mandatory for
accounting periods on or after January 1,2021. Except as otherwise stated, the adoption ofthe
new standards, amendments and interpretations, did not have a significant effect on the
Company's financial staternents. These standards are as follows:

Future Chanpes in Accountilgktlicies

The Company will adopt the following revised standards, interpretations and amendments when
these become effective. Except as otherwise indicated, the Company does not expect the
adoplion ofthese new and amended standards and interpretations to have significant impact on
its financial statements.

Effective January l, 2022

Amendment to existing Standards

Amendments to PAS l, Presentation of Financial Statements - clariff that the classification of
liabilities as curent or noncurrent is based solely on a company's right to defer settlement at
the reporting date. The right needs to be unconditional and must have substance. The
amendments also clarifu that the transfer ofa company's own equity instruments is regarded as

settlement of a liability, unless it results from the exercise of a conversion option meeting the
definition of an equity instrument.

ln response to COVID-I9, the effective date is pending a one-year deferral to 2023, to be
confirmed by the IASB Board mid-2020. Early adoption is permitted.

Amendments to PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets - clarii/ that
when assessing ifa contract is onerous, the cost of fulfilling the contract includes all costs that
relate directly to the contract i.e. a full-cost approach. Such costs include both the incremental
costs ofthe contract (i.e. costs a company would avoid if it did not have the contract) and an
allocation of other direct costs incurred on activities required to fulfill the contract e.g.
contract management and supervision, or depreciation of equipment used in fulfilling the
contract.

Further amendments to PFRS 3, Business Combinations - update references in IFRS 3 to the
revised 201 8 Conceptual Framework. To ensure that this update in referencing does not change
which assets and liabilities qualiI for recognition in a business combination, or create new Day
2 gains or losses, the amendments introduce new exceptions to the recognition and
measurement principles in PFRS 3.

The Amendment is not applicable to the Company.

Amendments to PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE) - Proceeds before Intended Use
- introduce new guidance. Proceeds from selling iterns (e.g. samples) before the related PPE is
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An acquirer should apply the definition of a liability in PAS 37 - rather than the definition in
the Conceptual Framework - to determine whether a present obligation exists at the acquisition
date as a result ofpast events. For a lely in the scope of IFRIC 21, the acquirer should apply
the criteria in IFRIC 21 to determine whether the obligating event that gives rise to a liability
to pay the lery has occurred by the acquisition date. In addition, the amendments clariry that
the acquirer should not recognize a contingent asset at the acquisition da1e.



and

available for its intended use can no longer be deducted from the cost of PPE. Instead such

proceeds should be recognized in profit or loss, together with the costs ofproducing those items
(to which PAS 2 applies). Accordingly, a company will need to distinguish between:

. costs of making the PPE available for its intended use.

Making this allocation of costs may require significant estimation and judgement. Companies
in the extractive industry in particular may need to monitor costs at a more granular level.

The amendments apply retrospectively but only for new PPE that reach their intended use on
or after the beginning ofthe earliest period presented in the financial statements in which the
entity first applies the amendments. They can be early adopted.

Arrnual Improvements to PFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle

Amendments to PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of PFRS, simplifu the application of PFRSl by a

subsidiary that becomes a first-time adopter of PFRS Standards later than its parent. If such a

subsidiary applies PFRS 1.D16(a), then it may elect to measure cumulative translation
differences at amounts included in the consolidated financial statements ofthe parent, based on
the parent's date oftransition to PFRS Standards.

Anendments to Illustrative Examples accompanying PFRS 16, remove the illustration of
payments from the lessor for lessee-owned leasehold improvements. As previously drafted, this
example was not clear about whether the pa),ments meet the definition ofa lease incentive.

Amendments to PAS 41 Agriculture -remove the requirement to exclude cash flows for taxation
when measuring fair value thereby aligning the fair value measurement requirements in PAS
41 with those in PFRS 13.

The amendment is not applicable to the Company.

Effective in 2023

PFRS 17, 'lnsurance contracts'
PFRS 17 requires insurance liabilities to be measured at a current fulfillment value and provides

a more uniform measurement and presentation approach for all insurance contracts. These

requirements are designed to achieve the goal of a consistent, principle-based accounting for
insurance contracts. PFRS 17 supersedes PFRS 4Insurance Contracts as of 1 lantary 2023.

The standard is not applicable to the Company
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costs of producing and selling items before the PPE is available for its intended use;

Amendments to PFRS 9, Financial lnstruments - clarify which fees to include in the '10
percent' test for derecognition of financial liabilities. A borrower includes only fees paid or
received between itself and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the borrower
or lender on the other's behalf.



Note 3 - SU1\{I\{ARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies used in the preparation of these financial statements are

summarized below. The policies have been consistently applied to all years presented unless

otherwise stated.

3. I Financial Instruments

Classification and Measuremenl at initial recognition

Financial assets and liabilities are classified and measured at fair value at initial recognition
(adjusted in some cases for transaction costs). The exception is for trade receivables that do not
contain a sigrrificant financing component, as defmed by PFRS 15, Revenue fiom Contracts
with Customers. These are measured at the transaction price (e.g. invoice price excluding costs

collected on behalf of third parties, such as sales taxes). As a practical expedient, it can be
presumed that a trade receivable that does not have a significant financing component if the
expected term is less than one year.

Financial assets are generally classified and measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognized inprofit or loss as they arise (F\?L) unless restrictive criteria are met for classifuing
and measuring th€m at Amortised Cost or Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income
(FVocr).

In limited circumstances, cost may provide an appropriate estimate of fair value. This would be
the case if insufficient more recent information is available to measure fair value or ifthere is

a wide range ofpossible fair value measurements and cost represents the best estimate of fair
value within that range. As at reporting date, the Company determined that since there are no
available information to measure the fair value ofits investment in certain foreign and domestic
companies, the original cost was determined to be the appropriate estimate of fair vahte. (see

Notes 6 & l0.l)

Financial assets

Classi"fication and Measurement after initial recognition
The Company classifies its financial assets, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at

amortized cost, fat value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) and fair value through
profit or loss (F\IPL). The classification depends on the contractual cash flow characteristics
ofthe financial assets and the business model ofthe Company for managing the financial assets.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets are not reclassified unless the Company
changes the business model for managing financial assets. All affected financial assets are
reclassified on the first day ofthe reporting period following the change in the business model.
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Cost as the basis for estimalingfair value



The business model refers to hou, the Company manages the financial assets in order to generate

cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. The Company considers the

following information in assessing the objective of the business model in which a financial
asset is held at a portfolio level, which reflects the way the business is managed and information
is provided to management:

the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation ofthose
policies in practice;

how the performance ofthe portfolio is evaluated and reported to the
Company's management;

the risks that affect the performance ofthe business model (and the financial
assets held within that business model) and how those risks are managed;

how employees ofthe business are compensated; and

the frequency, volume and timing ofsales of financial assets in prior periods,

the reasons for such sales and expectations about future sales activity.

The Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument in assessing whether the
contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest. The assessment includes
whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount
of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. The Company considers
the following in making the assessmenl:

contingent events that would change the amount or timing ofcash flows;

terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable rate
features;

prepayment and extension featues; and

terms that limit the Company's claim 10 cash flows from specihed assets

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion
if the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts ofprincipal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for
early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a discount or
premium to its contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepa).rnent at an

amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid)
contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early
termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion ifthe fair value ofthe prepa),ment feature
is insignificant al initial recognition.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in the following
categories: financial assets at amortized cost, financial assets at FVOCI (with or without
recycling of cumulative gains and losses) and financial assets at FVPL.

The Investment in Bonds is classified at amortised cost as at December 31,2021. (Note 9.2)
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Categories of financial instruments
The foregoing categories of financial instruments are more fully described below

(a) Amortized Cost
A frnancial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both ofthe following conditions and
is not designated as at F\?L:

it is held within a business model with the objective ofholding financial assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely pa)ments
ofprincipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortized cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest method
and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the
financial asset is derecognized, modified or impaired.

The Company has bank deposits repayable on demand and Trade Receivables requiring
payment only of fixed amounts on fixed dates.

The Company has investment in debt instruments designated at amortised cost. (See note 6)

(b) Fr/ocl

The asset is measured at fair value. The Company has no investments designated as FVOCI

Financial assets at FVOCI
Interest revenue, impairment gains and losses, and a portion of foreign exchange gains and
losses, are recognized in profit and loss on the same basis as for Amortized Cost assets. Changes
in fair value are recognized initially in Other Comprehensive Income (OCI).

Derecognition
When the asset is derecognized or reclassified, changes in fair value previously recognized in
OCI and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit and loss on a basis that always results
in an asset measured at FVOCI having the same effect on profit and loss as if it were measured
at Amortized Cost.

Investments in equitY instruments
Equity investments represents any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all its liabilities. Dividends represent "distributions of profits to holders
of equity instruments in proportion to their holdings of a particular class of capital. Dividends
are recognized when the entity's right to receive payment is established, it is probable the
economic benefits will flow to the entity and the amount can be measured reliably. Dividends
are recognized in profit and loss unless they clearly represent recovery of a part of the cost of
the investment, in which case they are included in OCI. Changes in fair value are recognized in
OCI and are never recycled to profit and loss, even if the asset is sold or impaired.

The Company has equity investments without readily determinable fair values. The Company's
management determined that the purchase cost is the appropriate estimate offair values ofthe
investment givar that there are no other available information to measure fair value (see Note
10).
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Derecognition
When the asset is sold, changes in the fair value ofthe asset can be transferred from the equity
account where OCI is accumulated to another equity account, retained eamings.

For an instrument at FVOCI, the following tests have to be met

. The objective ofthe ertity's business model is both to hold assets to collect cash flows and to
sell ("the Business Model test"), and
. The contractual cash flows ofan asset give rise to payments on specified dates that are solely
payments of principal and interest ('SPPQ on the principal amount outstanding ("the SPPI
test").

Recognition and Measuremenl of Impairntent - Expecled Credil Losses

This applies to loans and receivables measured at amortized cost or FVOCI. Because every
loan and receivable has at least some probability of defaulting in the future, every loan or
receivable has an expected credit loss associated with it-from the moment of its origination
or acquisition. Financial assets measured and classified as F\aPL or qualifoing equity
investments (FVOCI) do not have recycling of fair value changes to profit or loss.

Expected credit losses are calculated by: (a) identi$ing scenarios in which a loan or receivable
defaults; (b) estimating the cash shortfall that would be incurred in each scenario if a default
were to happen; (c) multiplying that loss by the probability ofthe default happening; and (d)
summing the results of all such possible default events. As a general rule, the maximum period
to consider in measuring expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period (including
extension options).

From the three available approaches: a general approach, a simplified approach (usually for
trade receivables, contract receivables, lease receivables) and the so-called "credit adjusted
approach (usually for purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets), the Company
adopted the simplified approach (provision matrix) due to short credit term given to its
customers and it does not have a significant financing component. Theprovision matrix is based
on an entity's historical default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is
adjusted for forward-looking estimates. (See Note 28.3)

After initial recognition, the impairment allowance is adjusted, up or down, through profit or
loss at each balance sheet date as the probabilities of collection and recoveries change. If the
loan turns out to be fully collectible, expected losses eventually would fall to zero as the
probability ofnon-payment declines and "impairment gains" would be recognized in profit and
loss. Ifthe loan grows riskier, the probability that a default will occur and thus expected credit
losses will increase. If a default happens, and the lender suffers an actual cash shortfall,
expected credit losses will equal that shortfall.

Write-offs
For assets classified as Amortized Cost, an entity must write offa loan or receivable when no
reasonable expectation ofrecovering the asset or a portion thereof(e.g., a specified percentage)
exists.

Financial Liabilities and Eouirv Insttuments

Classification as Debt or Equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance ofthe contrachral arrangements and the definitions ofa financial
liability and equity instrument.
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Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are recognized in the Company's financial statements when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. These are recognized initially
at fair values. Transaction costs are included in the initial measurement of the Company's
financial liabilities, except for any debt instruments classified at FVPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at FVPL or other fmancial
liabilities.

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVTPL, loans

and borrowings and payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an

effective hedge, as appropriate.

Sub s eq uent me a s urement
The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories:

Loans and borrovirgs. This category peftains to financial liabilities that are not held for trading
or not desigaated as at FVPL upon the inception ofthe liability. These include liabilities arising
from operations or borrowings. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are

recognized in profit or loss. Loans and borrowings are included under current liabilities if
settlement is within twelve months from reporting period. Otherwise, these are classified as

noncurrent liabilities.

Classified under this category are short term loans, long term loans and mortgage payable
(except for taxes payables and other payables covered by other accounting standards). As at

reporting date, the Company's other financial liabilities include deposit fiom supplier, interest
payable and other non-trade payables aggegating to Pl1,895,414. (See Notel 5)

Derecognition. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is

discharged or cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are

substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition ofthe
original liability and the recognition ofa new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognized in profit or loss.

Classification as Debt or Eou1tv
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance ofthe contractual arrangements and the dehnitions ofa financial
liability and equity instrument.

Financial Liabilities at FVPL
Financial liabilities are classified under this category thrcugh the fair value option. Derivative
instruments (including embedded derivatives) with negative fair values, except those covered
by hedge accounting relationships, are also classified under this category.
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AII frnancial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and

borrowings and payables, net ofdirectly attributable transaction costs.



A financial liability is classified as held for trading il

it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the near future;

it is a part ofan identified portfolio offinancial instruments that the Company manages
together and has a recent actual pattem ofshort-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument

A financial liability other than a financial liability held for trading may be designated at FVPL
upon initial recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arisei
the financial liability forms part ofa group offinancial assets or financial liabilities or
both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Company's documented risk management or investrnenl strategy.
and information about the gouping is provided intemally on that basis; or
it forms part of a contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, and it is
permitted that the entire combined contract to be designated as at FVPL.

Financial liabilities at F\?L are stated at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognized
in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss incorporates any interest paid
on the financial liability.

Other Financial Liabilities
Other financial liabilities, which includes trade and other payables (except those payable to the
govemment), refund liability, are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, with interest expense recognized on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is a method ofcalculating the amortized cost ofa debt instrument
and of allocating interest over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life ofthe debt instrument
or, when appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Offs e tt ing Finan ci a I Instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offsel and the net amount reported in the statements of
financial position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

A right to offset must be available today rather being contingent on a future event and must be
exercisable by any ofthe counterparties, both in the normal course ofbusiness and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy.

Derecognition
Financial liabilities are derecognized by the Company when the obligation under the liability is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount ofthe financial
liability derecognized and the consideration paid and payable is recognized in profit or loss.
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3.2 Inventories

Measurement
Inventories are valued initially at cost and subsequently at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. These costs are accounted for
as follows:

Raw materials, spare parts and supplies - raw and packing materials at standard cost

method adjusted to actual cost al the end of each reporting period; spare parts and

supplies at purchase cost on a moving average method; and,

Finished goods determined using standard cost method adjusted to actual at the
end of each reporting period; cost is based on annual business plan which includes
direct materials and labor and a proportion of manufacturing overhead costs based

on normal operating capacity but excludes borrowing costs.

The Company uses standard cost in measuring its inventories in as much as this approximates
the actual costs. These costs are assessed every year.

Obsolete, redundant and slow-moving inventories are identified and written down to net
realizable values.

Expense recognition

When inventories are sold and revenue is recognized, the carrying amount ofthose inventories
are recognized as expense (Cost of Sales). Any write-down to NRV and inventory losses are

also recognized as expense when they occur.

Sales retums and allowances

The Company also recognizes expected returns and corresponding refund liability. (See Note
3.5 "Ilarranty Obligations, Retums and Allowances, Discounts and Rebates")

3.3 ProperS,, Plant and Equipment

Recognition
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in
value. Items of property, plant and equipment are recognized as assets when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the assets will flow to the Company and the related
cost can be measured reliably. (See Note I 1)
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Write-down to Nel Realizable value
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Net realizable value of raw materials, spare parts

and supplies is the estimated current replacement cost (see Note 9). The difference between the
net realizable value and inventory cost shall be charged as ar expense or expense reduction in
the Cost ofGoods Sold section ofthe Statement ofComprehensive Income. (See Note l8)

The Company allows for the return of damaged or defective goods as part of the Company's
goodwill policy. When retums happen, the Company reduced sales revenue and corresponding
cost ofsales.



Initial Meastrement
The initial cost of an asset comprises its purchase price and directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use. Expenditures for additions, major
improvemants and renewals are capitalized; expenditures for repairs and maintenance are

charged to expense as incuned. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the

expenditure has improved the condition ofthe asset beyond the originally assessed standard of
performance, the expenditures are capitalized as an additional cost of property, plant and

equipment. When assets are sold, retired or otherwise disposed of, their cost and related

accumulated depreciation and impairment losses are removed from the accounts and any

resulting gain or loss is reflected as income or loss for the period.

Sub s eq uent Measure ment
Following initial recognition at cost, land and buildings and improvements are carried at its cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation (Cost Model)
Depreciation is computed on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives ofthe assets

as follows:
Building 10 40 years

Plant machineries 5 10 years

Plant tools and equipment 10 years

Warehouse equipment 10 years

Fumiture and Equipment 5 years
Transportation 5 years

In determining the useful life of an asset, other factors such as technical and commercial
obsolescence and wear and tear while an asset remains idle, are considered.

Recoterability of Carrying Amount
An item ofproperty, plant and equipment is subject to impairment testing. (See Note 3.10)

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's

carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.
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Depreciation is charged to profit and loss. Depreciation begins when the asset is available for
use and continued until the asset is derecognized even if it is idle.

The residual values and estimated useful lives of properly, plant and equipment are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date to ensure that the residual values, period and

method of depreciation and amortization are consistent with expected pattern of economic

benefits from items of property and equipment, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting
date.

Derecognition (retirement and disposal)
An item ofpropedy, and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise fiom the continued use ofthe asset. Aly gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and

the carrying amount of the item) is included in the Company's Statement of Comprehensive
lncome in the year the item is derecognized.



Conslruction in Progress

Construction in Progress includes all costs directly attributable to bring the asset to the
condition necessary for it to be capable ofoperating in the manner intended by management.

Construction in Progress is reclassified to Building once the asset is ready for occupancy.

3.4 Intangible Assas

Intangible assets pertain to acquired computer software. The cost of the asset is the amount of
cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the other considerations given up to acquire
an asset at the time of its acquisition or production. Capitalized costs are amortized on a

straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives (ranging fiom 2 to l0 years) as the lives of
these intangible assets are considered limited. In addition, other intangible assets are subject to
impairment testing as described in Nore 3.10.

Costs associated with research activities are expensed in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income as incurred. Costs that are directly attributable to the development phase of new
customized software for hformation technology and telecommunications systems are
recognized as intangible assets provided, they mea the following recognition requirements:

(D Demonstration of technological feasibility of the prospective product for
internal use or sale;

(iD The intangible asset will generate probable economic benefits through internal
use or sale;

(iiD SufEcient technical, financial and other resources are available for completion;
and,

(iv) The intangible asset can be reliably measured.

Soft tare Cost

Software costs are carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and any accumulated
impairment losses. (See Note l2)

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalized on the basis ofthe costs hcurred to acquire
and install the specific software. Costs associated with maintaining computer software are
expensed as incurred. The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed al
least at each financial year-end. Software cost is regarded as finite, intangible asset and is
amortized on a straightJine basis for a period of 2 to l0 years. Software cost is subject to
annual impairment testing.

3,5 Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions are recognized when present obligations will probably lead to an outflow of
economic resources and they can be estimated reliably even if the timing or amount of the
outflow may still be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or
constructive commitment that resulted from past events.

Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present obligation,
based on the most reliable evidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and
uncertainties associated with the present obligation. Any reimbursement expected to be
received in the course of settlernent of the present obligation is recognized, if virtually certain
as a separate asset, not exceeding the amount ofthe related provision. Where there are a number
of similar obligations, the likeiihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined
by considering the class of obligations as a whole. In addition, where time value of money is
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In those cases where the possible outflow ofeconomic resource as a result ofpresent obligations
is considered improbable or remote, or the amounl to be provided for cannot be measured

reliably, no liability is recogrrized in the financial statements.

Probable inflows of economic benefits that do not yet meet the recognition criteria ofan asset

are considered contingent assets; hence, they are not recognized in the financial statements.

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. They are disclosed,
unless, the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote. A
conti gent asset is not recognized in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.

'll/arrann Oblisations. Retunts & All nces. Discounts and Rebates (Note I 3)

The Company's general promotional/marketing strategy includes the promise to repair or
replace certain types of damage to its products within a year following the date of sale. The
warrarty covers one year fiom date ofsale for parts and services and five years for compressors.
Provision for warranty and actual warranty expenses amount to P4,908,092 and P4,827,841,
respectively.

The Company recogrrizes a refund liability based on expected level of retum determined upon
sale. Sales is reduced by the same amount. As at 2021 and 2020, refund liability amounts to
P3,359,463 for both years (See Note ,/4). Provisions for sales returns and actual sales retums
amount to P73,2142,852 (See Note l7).

The Company also allows for retums ofdamaged or defective goods. The Company recognizes
an asset based on the carrying amount ofthe products expected Io be retumed less the expected
recovery costs.

The Company updates the amounts of recovery and asset at the end of each reporting period
for changes in the expectations of the recovery amounts. The adjustment to the recovery is

recorded as an addition to revenue for refund liability and as expense for adjustments on the
asset.

In order to increase collection, the Company allows for credit, sales discounts for
dealers/customers that pays within the paym€nt terms. Aside from this, the Company also
grants installation rebates to their loyal custom€rs. Sales discounts and rebates are recognized
upon generation of sales. Sales discounts are applied against collection of sales within the
discount period; otherwise reverted to sales upon expiration of discount date. Rebates are
applied against receivables when threshold is met; otherwise reverted to sales upon expiration.
Provisions for sales discounts and actual sales discounts amount to P71,940,650 (See Note l7)
and P73,218,005, respectively. Provisions for installation rebates and actual installation rebates
amount to Pl6,737,805 andP16,722,473, respectively. (see Note 14.2)
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material, long-term provisions are discounted to their present values using a pre-tax rate that
reflects market assessments and the risks specific to the obligation.

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.



Based on its experience, the Company has determined the following provisions based on sales

ofthe current month to cover expected expenses from the various instances as mentioned above.

Sales Retum & Allowances
Sales Discount
Warranty Obligation
Installation Rebates

1o/o to 2o/o

4o/o lo 6oh
2%o to .3%o

7Yo to .go/o

3.6 Revenue and Cost Recognition

Prior to adoption of PFRS 15, revenue is recognized to the extent that the revenue can be
reliably measured, it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company, and the
revenue incurred or to be incurred can be measured reliably. The following specific
recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized.

Upon adoption ofPFRS 15, revenue is recognized to depict the transfer of promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services based on a five-step model:

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the sale of
goods or the rendering ofservices in the ordinary course ofthe Company's activities. Revenue
is shown net ofvalue-added tax, and./or, discounts.

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Sales of Goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at a point in time when control of the goods
underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer. The Company
generates its revenues from the sale ofair conditioner and compressor. There is no cost 10 obtain
any contract.

Sales Discounts
The Company allows for sales discounts for dealers/customers that pays within the paymenl
terms. Sales discounts are recognized upon generation of sales. Sales discounts are applied
against collection of sales within the discount period; otherwise reverted to sales upon
expiration of discount date.

Sales with a Right to Retut"n
For contracts that grants the customers the right to return purchased goods, discounts, and
rebates, revenue is recognized to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal
in the amount of cumulative revenue will not occur. Therefore, the amount of revenue
recogrrized is adjusted for expected returns, rebates or discounts, which are estimated based on
accumulated experience using the expected value method.

The Company recognizes a refund liability and a right to recover retumed goods asset for the
transfer ofgoods with a right to retum. The right to recover retumed goods asset is measured
at the former carrying amount ofthe inventory less any expected costs to recover goods. The

l5

o Identiff the conlract(s) with a customer
o ldenti& the performance obligations in the contract
o Determine the transaction price
. Ailocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
. Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance obligation.



Company reviews its estimate of expected retums at each reporting date and updates the
amounts ofthe asset and liability accordingly. (See Notes 4 and 8)

Interest Income
Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time proportion basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at

the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life ofthe financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount.

Other Income
Other income is income generated outside the normal course of business and is recognized
when it is probable that the economic benehts will flow to the Company and it can be measured

reliably.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognized when the Company's right as a shareholder to receive the
pa)..rnent is established.

Assembly Fee
Revenue is recognized upon completion/performance of the obligation/service to be provided
based on the assernbly services contract.

Rental Income
Revenue is recognized under the accrual method based on the terms of the existing lease

agreement.

Cost and Expense Recognition
Costs and expenses are recognized in the Company's Statement of Comprehensive Income
upon utilization of the service or at the date they are incurred. Except for borrowing costs

attributable to qualifying assets, all finance costs are reported on an accrual basis. Cost and

Expenses are presented as Cost of Sales and Services (Se e Note l8), Selling Expenses (See Note
20), General and Administrative Expenses (See Note 21) and Finance Costs (See Note 16) in
the Company's Statements of Comprehensive Income.

j,7 Employee Benefits

(a) Statutory Benefits

Compensated absences are recognized for the number of paid leave days (including
holiday entitlement) remaining at the repofiing date. They are included in the Accrued
Expense account in the Company's Statement ofFinancial Position at the undiscounted
amount that the subsidiary expects to pay as a result ofthe unused entitlement.
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ln accordance with the provisions of the Labor Code, the Company provides 13'r',

month Pay, Social Security System, Pag-ibig Membership, Home Mutual Development
Fund Membership and Philhealth Membership to all employees (See Note 26.1).

(b) Compensated Absences



(c) Retirenent Bencfit Obligations

Republic Act 7641 amending the Article 287 ofPresidential Decree No. 442, otherwise
known as the Labor Code, requires companies with more than ten (10) employees to
set up or plan a retirement benefit program for its employees.

A defined benefit plan is a pension plan that defines an amount ofpension benefit that
an employee will receive upon retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors
such as but not limited to age, years of seruice and salary. The legal obligation for any
benefits fiom this kind ofpension plan remains with the Company, even ifplan assets

for funding the defined benefit plan have been acquired. Plan assels may include assets

specifically designated to a long-term benefit fi.md, as well as quali$ing insurance
policies. The Company's defined benefit pension plan covers all regular full-time
employees. The pension plan is tax-qualified, non-contributory and administered by a

trustee.

The liability recognized in the Company's Statement of Financial Position for net
defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the dehned benefit obligation
(DBO) at the reporting date less the fair value ofplan assets. The DBO is calculated
annually by independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method. The present

value of the DBO is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using
interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in
which the benefits will be paid and that have terms to maturity approximating to the
terms ofthe related pension liability. (See Note 26.3)

Defined Benefit Costs
The components of defined benefit costs include service costs attributable to current
and past periods; net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset; and, re -
measurements ofthe net defined liability or asset.

Service costs are recognized as an expense in profit or loss. Past-service costs are

recognized, in the Company's Statement of Comprehensive Income, as an expense at
the earlier of the date when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs and the date
when the antity recognizes any termination benefits or related restructuring costs.

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability or asset is the change in the net benefit
liability or asset determined using the discount rate at the beginning ofthe period and

recognized in profit or loss. (See Note 26.3)

Re - measurement consisting of achrarial gains and losses, retum on plan assets, is
recognized immediately in Other Comprehensive lncome in the period they arise. Re

measurements are not recycled or reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

The Company adopted Amended PAS 19R in its financial statements retrospectively
to Jantary 2,2012. Accordingly, changes in defined benefit obligations and plan assets

are recognized when they occur; all past service cost are recognized in profit or loss as

they occur; and all actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in Other
Comprehensive lncome (OCI).

(d) Termination Benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Company
before the normal retkement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The subsidiary recognizes termination
benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either: (a) terminating the employrnent
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of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of
withdrawal; or, (b) providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to
encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits falling due more than twelve (12) months

after the reporting date are discounted to present value.

Identifying a lease
A contract is, or contains, a lease if it conveys the right to control the use ofan identified asset

for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Control is conveyed where the lessee has both the right to direct the identified asset's use and

to obtain substantially all the economic benefits from that use.

Separating contponents of a contract
For a contract that contains a lease component and additional lease and nonlease components,

such as the lease of an asset and the provision of a maintenance service, lessees shall allocate

the consideration payable on the basis of the relative stand-alone prices, which shall be

estimated if observable prices are not readily available.

As a practical expedient, a lessee may elect, by class of underlying asset, not to separate non-
lease components from lease components and instead account for all components as a lease.

Interest rate implicit in the lease
The interest rate that yields a present value of(a) the lease payments and (b) the unguamnteed
residual value equal to the sum of (i) the fair value of the underlying asset and (ii) any initial
direct costs ofthe lessor.

Lease term
The non-cancellable period for which a lessee has the right to use an underlying asset, plus:

a) periods covered by an extension option if exercise of that option by the lessee is reasonably
certain; and
b) periods covered by a termination option ifthe lessee is reasonably certain not to exercise that

option

Lessee's incremental borowing rate
The rate of interest that a lessee would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic envircrunent.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at the amount of the lease liability plus any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee. Adjustments may also be required for lease incentives,
payments at or prior to comnencement and restoration obligations or similar.

After lease commencement, a lessee shall measure the right-of-use asset using a cost model,
unless:
i) the right-of-use asset is an investment property and the lessee fair values its investment
property under PAS 40; or
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3,8 Leases

The Company, accordingly, accounts for its leases as follows:

Compar!,q l-@fee
Upon lease commencement the Company assesses taking into account whether as lessee it
should recognize a right-of-use asset and a lease liability.



ii) the righrof-use asset relates to a class ofPPE to which the lessee applies PAS 16's
revaluation model, in which case all right-of-use assets relating to that class of PPE can be

revalued.

Under the cost model a right-of-use asset is measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value ofthe lease paltlents payable over
the lease term, discounted at the rate implicit in the lease ifthat can be readily determined. If
that rate cannot be readily determined, the lessee shall use their incremental borrowing rate.
Variable lease pa),ments that depend on an index or a rate are included il the initial
measurement ofthe lease liability and are initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date. Amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees are also included.

Variable lease payrents that are not included in the measurement of the lease liability are
recognized in profit or loss in the period in which the event or condition that triggers palment
occurs, unless the costs are included in the carrying amount of another asset under another
Standard.

The lease liability is subsequently remeasured to reflect changes in:
. the lease term (using a revised discount rate);
. the assessment ofa purchase option (using a revised discount rate);
. the amounts expected to be payable under residual value guarantees (using an

unchanged discount rate); or
. future lease pa),ments resulting from a change in an index or a rate used to determine

those palments (using an unchanged discount rate).

The remeasurements are treated as adjustments to the right-of-use asset.

Lease modificatiorx may also prompt remeasurement ofthe lease liability unless they are to be
treated as separate leases.

As Lessee, the Company applied the practical expedient of accounting its lease payments as

operathg less due to a lease term of only 12 months and the underlying asset has a low value
for one lease agreement of3 years. (See Note 30.1)

3.9 Functional Currency and Foreign Curenqt Transactions

(a) Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the
functional currency). The Company's financial statements are presented in Philippine
Pesos (P), which is the functional and presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and Balances

The accounting records of the Company are maintained in Philippine Pesos (P).
Foreign currency trarsactions during the year are translated into the fi.rnctional currency
at exchange mtes which approximate those prevailing on transaction dates.

Foreign currency gairs and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the Company's Statement of
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Comprehensive Income. Translation differences resulting fiom non-monetary financial
assets such as equities classified as available-for-sale financial assets are included in
the fair value reserve in the Company's Statement ofChanges in Equity.

The Effects of Chanses in Foreim Exchanee Rates

These provide certain restrictions in allowing the capitalization of foreigrr exchange
differentials. Under prevailing circumstances, the adoption will not have a material effect on
the Company's financial position. The Company recognized a net foreign cunency gain (loss)
ofP74l,O74 and (P219,284) for the year ended December 31,2021and 2020, respectively (See

Notes 5 and 19).

3.10 Impairment of Non-financial Assets

The Company's inventory, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are subject to
impairment testing.

Identifiing an asset that may be impaired

At the end of each reporting period, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that
any of its non-financial assets may be impaired (i.e. its carrying amount may be higher than its
recoverable amount).

Indi cations of imp airment

For purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). As a result, some assets are tested

individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit level.
The factors that the Company considers important which could trigger an impairmenl review
include the following:

Extemal sources
o market value declines;
o negative changes in technology, markets, economy or laws;
. increase in market interest rates;
. net assets ofthe Company higher than market capitalization

Internal sources:
. obsolescence or physical damage;
. asset is idle, part ofa restructuring or held for disposal
. worse economic performance than expected
. for investments in subsidiaries, ioint ventures or associates, the carrying amount is

higher than the carrying amount ofthe investee's assets, or a dividend exceeds the total
comprehersive income of the investee

D etetmining rec overa b I e amo unt
. If fair value less costs ofdisposal or value in use is more than carrying amount, it is not

necessary to calculate the other amount. The asset is not impaired.
. If fair value less costs of disposal cannot be determined, then recoverable amount is

value in use.
o For assets to be disposed of, recoverable amount is fair value less costs ofdisposal.
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Recognition of an impairment loss
An impairment loss is recognised whenever recoverable amount is below carrying amount. The
impairment loss is recognised as an expense (unless it relates to a revalued asset where the

impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease). Adjust depreciation for future periods.

Reversal of an impairment loss
All assets are subsequently reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously
recognized may no longer exist and the carrying amount of the asset is adjusted to the
recoverable amount resulting in the reversal ofthe impairment loss.

3.11 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the period, in which they are incurred, except to
the extent that they are capitalized. Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifuing asset (i.e., an asset that takes a substantial period of
time to get ready for its intended use or sale) are capitalized as part ofcost ofsuch asset. The
capitalization of borrowing costs commences when expenditures for the asset and borrowing
costs are being incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use

or sale are in progress. Capitalization ceases when substantially all such activities are complete.

3.12 Related Porty Transactions

Parties are considered to be related ifone party has the ability to, directly or indirectly, control
or exercise significant inJluence over the party in making financial and operating decisions.
Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or co lmon
sigaificant influence. (See Note 23)

Related party relationships are a normal feature of cofllmerce and business. The Company
sometimes grants/secures interest-bearing and non-interest-bearing advances tolfrom its
affiliates andlor shareholders. Intereslbearing advances are covered by promissory notes

renewable annually. Advances to affiliates and/or shareholders are presented as part of
Receivables in the Company's Statement of Financial Position. Interest-bearing advances fiom
an affiliate and/or shareholder are presented as part of Notes Payable in the Statement of
Financial Position.

Transactions between related parties are accounted for at arm'sJength prices or on terms similar
to those offered to non-related entities in an economically compatible market.

In considering each possible related party relationship, attention is directed to the substance of
the relationship and not merely the legal form.

3.13 Income Toxes

The tax expense for the period comprises tax currently payable and deferred tax. Income Tax
is recognized in the Statement ofcomprehensive Income, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current income tax assets or liabilities comprise those claims from, or obligations to, fisca1

authorities relating to the current or prior reporting period, that are uncollected or unpaid at the
reporting date. They are calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes to
current tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component of tax expense or benefit in the
Company's Statement of Comprehensive lncome.
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Deferred tax is provided, using the balance sheet liability method on temporary differences at

the reporting date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes. (Sce Note 22.2)

Under the balance sheet liability method, with certain exceptions, deferred tax liabilities are
recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assels are recognized for all
deductible temporary differences and the carry-forward of unused tax losses and unused tax
credits to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deferred income tax asset to be utilized.

Current tax and deferred tax shall be charged or credited to equity if the tax relates to items that
are credited or charged, in the same or a different period, directly to equity.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to
the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred income tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at

each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future
taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Most changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognized as a component oftax expense

in the Company's Statement of Comprehensive Income. Current tax and deferred tax relating
to items recognized directly in equity is also recognized in equity and not in the Company's
Statement of Comprehensive lncome.

Deferred tax related to fair value re-measurement of available-for-sale investments which are

charged or credited directly in other comprehensive income or to equity, is also charged directly
to equity and subsequently recognized in the Company's Statement ofcomprehensive Income,
together with the unrealized gain or loss.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset ifa legally enforceable right exists to
set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and deferred taxes related to the same

taxable entity and the same taxable authority.

3.14 Earnings per Share

Basic eamings per share is computed by dividing the net income for the year attributable to
equity holders ofthe Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares issued and

outstanding during the year after considering the retroactive effect, ifann of stock dividends
declared during the year, excluding treasury shares. (See Note 24)

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net income or loss for the year by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares oulstanding during the year, excluding treasury
shares and adjusted for the effects ofall dilutive potential common shares, ifany.

ln determining both the basic and diluted eamings per share, the effect of stock dividends, if
any, is accounted for retroactively.
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3.15 Equitl

Capital stock is determined using the nominal value of shares that have been issued. (See Note
25)

Additional paid-in capital includes any premiums received on the initial issuing ofcapital stock.
Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares are deducted from additional paid-
in capital, net of any related income tax benefits.

Retained eamings include all current and prior period results as disclosed in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Cumulative actuarial adjustments pertain to remeasurement adjustments on the net defined
benefit obligation or asset due to the difference between the actual experience and estimates in
the pension pIans.

The cost of acquiring the Company's own shares of stock, or treasury shares, are shown as a

deduction from equity attributable to the Company's equity until the shares are cancelled or
reissued. When such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received, net
of directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the related income tax effects and are

included in equity attributable to the Company's shareholders.

Prior Peiod Adjustments
Errors can arise in respect of the recognition, measurement, presentation or disclosure of
elements of financial statements. Potential current period errors discovered in that period are

corrected before the financial statements are authorized for issue. However, material errors are

sometimes not discovered until a subsequent period, and these prior period errors are corrected
in the comparative information presented in the financial statements for that subsequent period.

The Company corrects a prior period error by retrospective restatement except when it is

impracticable to determine either the period-specific effects or the cumulative effect of the
error. When it is impracticable to determine the period-specific effects of the error on
comparative information for one ormore prior periods presented, the restatement ofthe opening
balances of assets, liabilities and equity shall be made for the earliest period for which
retrospective restatement is practicable. When it is impracticable to determine the cumulative
effect, at the beginning ofthe current period, ofan error on all prior periods, restatement ofthe
comparative information to correct the error prospectively shall be made from the earliest date
practicable.

3.16 Events a;fter the Reporting Dote

Events after the reporting date are those events, favorable and unfavorable, that occur between
the reporting date and the date when the financial statements are authorized for issue. (See Nole
29)

The Company adjusts the amounts recognized in the financial statements to reflect adjusting
events after the reporting date. Non-adjusting events ale not recognized in the financial
stalements but are disclosed in the Notes to Financial Statements.
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Note 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOT]NTING JUDGMENTS AND ESTII\IATES

The preparation of the Company's financial statements in conformity with PFRS requires

managenrent to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts therein and in the
accompanying notes. The estimates and assumptions used are based upon management's
evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as of the date of the Company's financial
statements. Actual results could differ from such estimates, judgments and estimates are

continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectatiorx of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Estimates and judgrnents are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and

olher factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances.

Critical Managemenl Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the

following judgments, apart from those involving estimation, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Judgement exercised in assessing the effects of the COYID l9 pandemic event which persisted
after balance sheet dale on the Company's Going Concern (see Note 29.1)

The Company exercised judgement in determining whether the effects of the COVID 19

pandernic which started in 2020 and continued to persist even after balance sheet date affected
the Company's going concern and/or whether the continuing event results to an adjusting event.
Management also reviewed certain accounts subject to judgement and estimation uncertainty
such as impairrnent of financial and non-finalcial assets, expected credit losses or
recoverability of deferred tax assets.

During the enhanced community quarantine imposed by the government, the Company's
operations were affected by the following:

1. Ceased operation for a month
2. Limited foot traffic in the malls and other distribution channels directly affecting sales

performance although the decline is somehow augmented by the shift by buyers to
onlhe trading

3. Delay in completion of office warehouse building in Davao (see Note 11)

During the pandemic, the following were actions taken by management:
1. Adjustments in operational processes to comply with govemment rules and regulations

relative to health protocols and social distancing.
2. To mitigate adverse conditions on income, emphasis was placed on expense controls.
3. Promotion of aircon essentials
4. Availed ofthe Bayanihan Acts I and 2 for its outstanding loans
5. Availed of govemment assistance to employees (e.g. P8,000 per employee in May)
6. Allowed 50% of employees to work from home which slowed down operations
7. lncurred costs ofCOVID testings

Some none-adjusting events that represent impact on the Company are as follows:
1. Re-structuring of loan
2. Discontinuance of certain segment of the operation
3. Significant decline in fair value of investments



The management concluded that the resulting continuing event has no material impact on its
financial statements for the reporting period.

Identifying performance obligations in reverurc contracts wilh its customer

The Company management exercised judgement in identifying performance obligations in
revenue conlracts with its customer and determine effects on its revenue recognition.
Management has identified that its performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time which
is to transfer the goods at the point of delivery. Also identified is that control is transferred on
the delivery date, i.e. the date when the Company has fulfilled its performance obligations.
There is cost to obtain the contract.

Es timating variabl e considerations

The Company's management exercised judgement in estimating the variable considerations
such as right to return purchased goods, discounts and rebates, in arriving at the transaction
price as defined in PFRS 15. (See Notes 3.5 and 14.2)

Change in criteriafor determiningwhen the Amortized Cost, FVOCI or FVPL categories apply
to the Company's fnancial instruments

The Company management exercised judgement in classifying its cash and cash equivalents
and receivables as financial assets at Amortized Cost based on a business model whose

objective is to collect contractual cash flows and its Investment in Bonds shares as financial
assets at FVOCI based on a business model whose objective is to both collect contractual cash

flows and to sell. Its Trade Payable, Mortgage Payable, Term Loans and Other payables will
remain as financial liabilities at amortized cost.

Determining Signifi cant Inlluence over Ass ociate

Although the Company owns 22.5o/o of 3D Fab Lab Limited Hongkong, the Company exercised
significant judgment in stating that it does not have sigrrificant inlluence over the Associate.
The Company does not represent itself in the latter's Board of Directors or any equivalent
thereof. There are no potential voting rights. Since the latter's shares also has no quoted price,
and there are no other information available to measure fair value reliably, hence, the
investment shall be classified as an equity investrnent where cost is the best estimate of fair
value. (See Note 10)

Adequacy of allowance for credit losses on loans and receivables including short-term
receivables

The Company management exercised judgement in determining adequacy of the impairment
allowances considering forward looking estimates. As a result, the Company provided for a

provision for credit losses amounting to P1,021,455 in2O2l. (See Notes 7, 2l & 28.3)

De te rminati on of Functiona I Currency

Based on the economic substance of the underlying circumstances relevant to the Company,
the functional currency of the Company has been determined to be the Peso. The Peso is the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company operates. It is the
currency that mainly influences the revenue, costs and expenses ofthe Company.
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Disclosure on Related Party Transaclions

The Company determines the level of detail to be disclosed, in accordance with the
requirements of the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, in order to provide information
in sufficient detail to the users of the financial statements to understand the effects of related
party transaclions on its financial statements:

ll
the nature and amount of each individually significant transaction; and
a qualitative or quantitative indication of the extent of transactions that are

collectively, but not individually, significant.

In arriving at this judgment, the Company considers the closeness of the related party
relationship and other factors relevant in establishing the level of significance of the
transactions. (See Notes 3.12 and 23)

Operating and Finance Leases

The Company has entered into various operating lease agreements as either a lessor or a lessee.

Critical judgment was exercised by management to distinguish each lease agreement as either
an operating or finance lease by looking at the transfer or retention of significant risk and

rewards of ownership ofthe properties covered by the agreements.

Rental expenses for 2021 and 2020 amount to P2,400,100 and P2,388,571, respectively. (See

Note 21 & 30.1)

The Company has recognized gross revenue amounting to Pl,767,549,619 and P 1,821,891,557
for the sale ofthe aircon units to wholesale dealers in 2021 and 2020, respectively (See Note

-1 7/. Based on the sale transactions, the buyer has the right to retum the goods should there be

any defect either in packaging or the product itself. Moreover, the Company allows for credit
discounts to their long-standing customers once paynent is received within 90 days from the
date of delivery. Based on these policies, the Company believes that based on past experiences,
the percentage of retums shall be 2% and discounts and rebates shall be 6%. The Company
therefore recognized revenue with the corresponding provision against revenue for estimated
returns, credit discounts, and rebates. The provision for sales retums and discounts amounts to
P145,383,501 and P111,058,794 for the years ended Decernber 31,2021 and 2020,
respectively. (see Notes 3.5 and Notc 17)

P rov is ions and Conlingencies

Judgment is exercised by management to distinguish between provisions and contingencies
based on the certainty of the significant obligation or outflow resulting from contractual
obligations, agreements, etc. and said outflow can be estimated reliably even if timing of may
not be certain. Policies on recognition and disclosure of provision and disclosure of
contingencies are discussed in Note -J.5 and other relevant disclosure presented in lr'ote 30.

Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainry
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Revenue Recognition

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, management is required to make
judgernents, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts ofassets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based

on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.



The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period ofthe revision and future periods ifthe revision affects
both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions conceming the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and ltabilities within the next financial year:

a) Fair Value Measurements and Yalualion Processes

Some ofthe Company's assets and liabilities are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. The board of directors of the company has set up a valuation
committee, which is headed up by the Chief Financial Officer of the company, to
determine the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the
Company engages third party qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The valuation
committee works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model. The ChiefFinancial Officer reports the

valuation committee's fmdings to the board of directors ofthe company every quarter

to explain the cause of fluctuations in the fair value ofthe assets and liabilities.

As at reporting date, the Company determined that since there are no available
information to measure the fair value of its investments in 3D Fab Lab Limited, the
original cost was determined to be the appropriate estimate of fair value.

Information about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining the fair
value ofvarious assets and liabilities are disclosed in ly'ote 28./.

b) Standard cost as measurement of inventories

The Company exercises judganent in determining the appropriate standard cost to be
used in measuring its inventories and conducts assessment ofthe standard cost every
year. (See Note 3.2)

c) ImpairmentofNon-FinancialAssels

The Company assesses impairment on assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount ofan asset may not be recoverable.
The factors that the Company considers important which could trigger an impairment
review include the following:

. significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future
operating results;

. sigrrificant changes in the manner ofuse ofthe acquired assets or the strategy
for overall business; and

. significant negative industry or economic trends.

The Company recognizes an impairment loss whenever the carrying amount ofan asset

exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is computed using the value
in use approach. Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if it is not
possible, for the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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In determining the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to be
generated from the continued use of the assets or holding of an investment, the
Company is required 10 make estimates and assumptions thal can materially affect the
financial statements.

d) I/aluatkn of Financiol Assats Other than Trade and Other Recei,ables

The Company canies other financial assets such as financial assets at FVOCI. The fair
value for financial instruments traded in active markets at the balance sheet date is

based on their quoted market price or dealer price quotations (bid price for long
positions and ask price for short positions), without any deduction for transaction costs.

When current bid and ask prices are not available, the price of the most recent

transaction provides evidence of the current fair value as long as there has not been a

significant change in economic circumstances since the time ofthe transaction.

In determining the fair value of the Company's financial assets at fair value,

management evaluates the presence of significant and prolonged decline in the fair
value of share price below its cost, the normal volatility in the share price, the financial
health ofthe investee and the industry and sector performance like changes in operation
and financial cash flows. Any indication of deterioration in these factors can have a

negative impact on their fair value. In cases when active market quotes are not
available, fair value is determined by reference to the current market value of another
instrument which is substantially the same or is calculated based on the expected cash

flows ofthe underlying net base ofthe instrument. The amount ofchanges il fair value

would differ if the Company utilized different valuation methods and assumptions.
Any change in fair value ofthese financial assets and liabilities would affect profit and

loss and equity.

e) Allowance for Impairment of Trade and Other Receivables

The Company evaluates these accounts based on its default experience with its
customers, available facts and circumstances, including, but not limited to, the lenglh
of the Company's relationship with the customers, the customers' current credit status

based on third party credit reports and on known market forces, collateral security,
average age of accounts, collection experience and historical default experience. The
Company management is of the opinion that the impairment allowances is not
materially affected by following the same table of provision used in the reporting
period.

The Company's management, after careful evaluation, provides for the allowance for
credit losses amounting to P5,779,785 on its trade and other receivables as at the
reporting period. (See Notes 7 and 28.3)

f) Useful Lives of Property and Equipment

The Company estimates the useful lives ofproperty and equipment based on the period
over which the assets are expected to be available for use. The estimated useful lives
of property and equipment are reviewed periodically and are updated if expectations
differ from previous estimates due to physical wear and tear, technical or commercial
obsolescence and legal or other limits on the use of the assets. The carrying amounts
ofproperty and equipment are analyzed tn Note I I . Actual results, however, may vary
due to changes in estimates brought about by changes in the aforementioned factors.
There is no change in estimated useful lives ofproperty and equipment during the year
(see Note 3.3).
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d Valuation ofintangible assets and useful life

The Company carries a computer software. In assessing whether there is any
indication that the software right may be impaired, the Company considered extemal

and intemal sources of information (See Note l2). The carrying amount of computer
software is PI,434,408 and P1,223,142 for the years 2021 and 2020, respectively.

h) Retirement Liability and other employee benefits

The Company determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each financial
reporting period. This is the interest rate that is used to determine the present value of
estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the retirement

obligation. In determining the appropriate discount rate expected retum on the plan
assets, the Company considers the interest rate on government bonds that are

denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have terms to

maturity approximating to the terms of the related retirement obligation.

Other key assumptions for retirement obligation are based in part on current market

conditions. Additional information is disclosed in Note 26.3.

The determination ofthe Company's retirement liability and other employee benefits
is dependent on the selection ofcertain assumptions used in calculating such amounts.
Those assumptions include, among others, discount rates, expected retum on plan
assets and salary increase rates. Du€ to the long-term nature ofthese plan assels, such

estimates are subject to significant uncertainty.

The assumed discount rates were determined using the market yields on Philippine
government bonds with terms consistent with the expected employee benefit payout as

of balance sheet dates. Refer to Nore 26.3 for the details of assumptions used in the

calculation. In accordance with PAS 19, actual results that differ from the Company's
assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future periods and therefore,
generally affect the recognized expense and recorded obligations in such future periods.

While the Company believes that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate,

significant differences in the actual experience or significant changes in the

assumptions may materially affect the retirernent liability.

The Company also estimates other employee benefit obligations and expenses,

including costs of paid leaves based on historical leave availment of employees and

subject to the Company's policy. These estimates may vary depending on the future
changes in salaries and actual experiences during the year.

Retirement benefit cost recognized in profit or loss for the years ended December 31,
2021 and 2020 amounted to P8,898,217 andP6,454,111, respectively (see Notes 2l &
26.2).

As at December 31,2021 and 2020, the retirement liability ofthe Company amounted
to P38,738,676 and P46,068,021, resp*tively (see Note 26.3).
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i) Impairment of Non-Jinancial Assets

The Company assesses impairment on assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable.

The factors that the Company considers important which could trigger an impairment
review include the following:

The Company recognizes an impairment loss whenever the carrying amount ofan asset

exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is computed using the value
in use approach. Recoverable amounts are estimated for individual assets or, if nol
possible, for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In determining the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to be
generated fiom the continued use of the assets or holding of an irvestment, the

Company is required to make estimates and assumptions that may materially affect the
financial statements.

il Realizable Amount of Deferred Tar Assets and Liabilities

Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax
asset that can be recognized based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Management has determined based on business forecast of succeeding years that there
are enough taxable profits against which the recognized deferred income tax assets will
be realized (see Note 2 I .2) .

Deferred Tax Assets recognized during the year amotmted lo P22,543,686. (See Note
21 .2.1)

k) Income lax provision

The Company's current tax provision of P30,106,055 relates to management's
assessment of the amount of tax payable on open tax positions where the liabilities
remain to be agreed with relevant tax authorities. Unc€rtain tax items for which a

provision ofP7,964,l3l is made relate principally to the interpretation oftax legislation
applicable to the Cornpany. (See Note 22.1)
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o significant underperformance relalive to expected historical or projected future
operating results;

o significant changes in the manner ofuse ofthe acquted assets or the strategy
for overall business; and

o significant negative industry or economic trends.

The Company reviews its deferred tax assets and liabilities at each reporting date and

reduces the carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset and/or
liability to be utilized.



Note 5 - FINANCIAL ASSET AT A ]\IORTIZED COST - CASII

This account is comprised ofthe following:

2021

Cash in bank

Local currency

Foreign currency

Revolving fund

2020

P 266,931,174

2s,800,647
235.000

P

P 357,174,329 P 292,566,82t

Cash accounts with the banks generally eam interest at rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

Included in cash in banks are USD denominated bank deposits totaling to USD302,133 or
Pl5,340,503 in 2021 USD537,108 or P25,800,647 in 2020.

lnterest income eamed from cash and cash equivalents totaled P287,091 and P829,531 in 2021

and 2020, respectively (See Note l9). lJwealized gain (loss) on forex resulting from the
translation ofthe US Dollar deposit to Philippine peso amount to P714,074 and (P219,284) in
2021 and 2020, respectively, presented as a component of Net Unrealized Gain (Loss) on
Foreign Exchange presented as part of Other lncome and Expenses in the Statements of
Comprehensive lncome (See Note l9).

None of the above assets were used as security to any loan or liability and, therefore, no
restrictions on the assets.

Note 6 - INVESTMENT IN DEBT INSTRUMENTS AT AMORTISED COST

6.1 Investment in Bonds - Cunent

On January 1,2021, the Company made a short-term investment with BDO Unibank Inc
acquired at a discount amounting to P30,000,000. Unamortized bond discount as ofDecember
31 , 2021 amounted to P6,178. Carrying value of this bond as ofDecember 31, 2021 amounted
to P29,993,822.

6.2 Investment in Bonds Non-cunent

On March 1,2018, the Company made a long-term investment in SM Prime Bond with a
principal of P50,000,000 for 7 years. The bond earns interest at 6.0804% per annum and will
be receive semi-annually in arrean.

Interest income earned on this investments amounted to P4,259,734 and P3,811,162 for the
years 2021 and 2020, respectfuely. (See Note I 8)

Accrued interest on these investments amounted to P1,013,400 for both years 2021 aIJd 2020,
respectively. (See Note 6)
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Note 7 - FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AN{ORTISED COST - TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

This account consists of:

2021

Trade receivables

Allowance for credit losses

Trade receivables - net

Advances to offrcers and employees (Note 7.1 & 2jd)
Allowance for credit losses

Interest receivable (ir'ote 6)

Other receilables Qtlote 7.2)

P 3 r8,843,860
( 5,?65,2t|5 ) 1

282,10/.317

4213,7s0 I

P

313,578,6ss
4,2s9,630

sr4,s80 )
1,013,400

I,147 ,,161

278,4$56',7

4270,87',7

s 14.580 )

1,013,400

9t9,927

P 319,484,266 P 284,150,1m

The fair value ofthese short-term financial assets is not individually determined as the carrying
amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

All receivables are subject to credit risk exposure. However, the Company does not identif
specific concentrations of credit risk with regards to receivables, as the amounts recognized

resemble a large number ofreceivables fiom various customers.

An aging ofthese receivables as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 is presented below:

2021 2020

Age of Receirables

Current (l-30 days)

3l - 60 days

6l - 90 days

Over 90 days

P 318,843,860 P 282,704,317

All of the Company's receivables have been reviewed for indicators of impairment. As at

December 31,2021, after careful evaluation, the Company made a provision for its trade

receivables amounting to P1,021,455.

As at December 31,2020, the Company recognized a recovery of credit losses on its trade

receivables amounting lo P3,415,292. (See Note 19)

7.1 Advances to officers and employees

Advances to officers and ernployees pertains to non - interest bearing cash advarces given by
the Company subject to liquidation.

7.2 Interest receivoble

Interest accrued on Investment in Bonds amounting to P1,013,400 as at 2021 and 2020

P 722,,242,850

110,289,337

45,147,391

41,164,282

P

5Z

2020

(

1254s6201

70,q2,864

65,220,796

21.624.456



7.3 Other receivables

Other receivables pertain to non interest bearing cash and non-cash loans by officers and

employees that are paid off through salary deduction for 12 to 24 months.

None ofthe Company's receivables were used as security or collateral to any liability.

Note 8 - REFUND ASSET/LIABILITY

Refund asset amounted 1oP2,472,010 for both years 2021 and 2020. This account pertains to
the right to recover retumed goods asset that is measured at the former carrying amount ofthe
inventory less any expected cost to recover goods. (See Note 3.5)

2021 2020

Begiming

Provisiors for retums

Achral rehrms

Relimd asset

Beginning

Provisions for retums

Actual reh.ms

Retund liability

P 2,472,010
73,442,852

( 73,142,852 ) t

2,s04479

9,683,168

9,715,637 )
P 2,472,010 P 2172p10

Retumed goods asset is accounted as inventory. This is distinctly identifiable from finished
goods.

Refund liability amounted to P3,359,463 for both years 2021 and 202 and presented as part of
Trade and Other Payables (See Note 14). This pertains to provision made for sales retums

representing estimated retums for sales in accordance with the Company's sales retums policy.

Movements in the account are as follows:

2021 2020

P 3,359,463
16,,919,210

( 16,91e,210 ) (

3473$6s
349s8437

34.172$39 )

P

P 3,359,463 P 3,359A63

Provision for sales retums are estimated primarily on the basis ofhistorical experience, market
conditions, and provided for in the year ofsale as a reduction from revenue.

Note 9 - INVENTORY

This account consists of:

2021 2020

Finished Coods
Inventory in Transit

Service Parts

Total

P 417,9O4367
2,t39,E17

557 ,7'7 5,730
, )<r 110

P

420,041,181
s,496,471

560,028,169

6,466,441
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The cost of individual items of inventory are delermined using the first in, first out method.
Inventories recognized as an expense for the years ended December 31,2021 and 2020 totals
to Pl,248,979,597 and Pl,292,409,067, respectively. (See Note l8)

In 2020, the Company disposed some of their obsolete inventories. Invenlory Loss on these

disposals amounted toP2,376,578 as of December 31, 2020 after considering previously set up
allowance for inventory obsolescence from prior year.

None ofthe Company's inventory was written down to its net realizable value as of December

31,2021 and 2020.

Note IO - FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUf, THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME: INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY INSTUMENTS

This account consists of investments in private foreign and domestic companies. Investments
in stocks are accounted for at fair value. (see Notes 3.1 (ii A 3.2)

10.1 Investnrcnt in Stocks

2021 2U0

3D Fab tab Limited (Note 9. ./)

Allowance for irpairment

La View Security Phrlip pnes,hc. (Note 9.2)

Allowance for inpainnent

P 15152,075 P

15.252.075 ) (

t5,25L075

15,252,075 )

Total P

10.1,1 Investment in 3D Fab Lab Limited

This pertains to the Company's 22.50% investment in 3D Fab Lab Limited Hong Kong, a private
company limited by shares, incorporated on May 22,2014 and previously named as 3D
Innovation Technology Limited, amounting to USD I12,500 or P5,089,500 on October i6,
2015. In 2016, the Company made additional investment amounting to P10,135,575 or
USD212,000. The Company determines that it does not have significant influence or control
over the Company since it does not represent itself in the latter's Board of Directors or any
equivalent thereof. There are no potential voting rights.

In 2018, the Company provided l00o% allowance for impairment since the investee has already
closed its business and fair value measurernent ofthe its investment is impracticable.

10.1.2 Investment in La View Securi1' Philippines, Inc.

The Company's investment in La View Security Philippines r€presents its 15oZ share in the
outstanding capital stock of the company amounting to P1,500,000. La View Security
Philippines, Inc. was incorporated and registered with the SEC on May 23, 2012 under the laws

t,500,000

1.500.000 )

P

The company's net realizable value is higher that its cost to sell so there is no need Io allocate

allowance for inventory obsolescence for December 31, 2021 .

1,5m,000

I 1.500.fiX) )(
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In 2019, after careful evaluation, provided 100% allowance for impairment losses in this
investment at its whole amount amounting to P1,500,000 since the investee has already closed
its business and fair value measurement ofthe its investment is impracticable.

Note 11 - PROPER'I'Y AND EQUIPI\IENT

Reconciliation of the carrying amounts at the beginning and end of2021 and 2020, and the
gross carryhg amount and the accumulated depreciation of property and equipment are shown
below:

2!21

Co{ t Bcgi Adtions Reclass/ Reco\cry hdng
l-and
Buildins
Plant & warehouse building,

rmchineries and equipnEnt
Fumiture, fixture and equipnEnt
Trans po rtatio n
Other equprnent
Crnstruction in progress
warehouse equipnEnt

19.r,50.1,864
29,566,444
44,985,421
3,123,096

I1,810,585

5,169,423
5,883,186
2-s9l -s l8

217,199

211-s83,872
35,449,670
47 57 6,942
3340,295

P 176,523-s96 P
122311,2t4

116_\23,596
t223 t 1,214

P

I1.810.5It5

(l1.810,5It5)
2S0.893 250.893

s82-921-262 t1.t 12,219 597.0-16.482

Accumulrtcd I)eD.cciation Rcsinning Addtions Dis Fo{al lhdi ng

Building
Plant & warehouse building,

nEchineries and equipnEnt
Fumiture, 6xure and equiprrEnt
Tmnspo(ation
OtherequrpnEnt
warehouse equiprrEnt

I14,197,692
25,214,945
36,71E,4l s

2,170,49O

5,436,t 95
4,328,718
5,606,985

224,413
30,878

I19,633,887
29543,663
42325,4OO
2,995363

30.878

P 4,502,846 P 3,086,510 P P 7-589356

I ttl..l0.l -3 {16 18.714,159 2l)2 - l llt-5.15

Arcumulatcd lmFirment
l-and (Note 18)

Nel Book Value P -399.519.876 P (,t.601,9,10) P P 39,1.917.9.16
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ofthe Philippines with SEC Registration No. CS201209010. Its primary purpose is to engage

in, operate, conduce and maintain the business of manufacturing, importing, assembling,

repainng, selling or otherwise dealing in wholesale products such as: digital video recorders,
CCTV cameras, display monitors, power supplies, security alarms, and devises, access control
devices, and other related digital surveillance equipment or products of similar nature, and any
and all equipment, materials, supplies, accessories used or related to such products.
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Cosl Bcginning Additions Rcclassl Rccor cr1 Ending

Land
Building
Plant & warehouse building,

machineries and equipme[l

Fumi(ure, lixture and equipment

Transporlalion

Other equipment

Construction in Drogress

P t76,523,596 P

1r3J06,932
P t76,523,596

122.311.2 ! I9.001.283

r93,097,480

2E.2Ett,022

38,1t2,791

2,926.115

r,506,38,1

1,21t,462

6,5?2,630

l96,6El
I r,Et0,585

194.603,864

29,566,4t{

44,985.421

3,t23,096
I I,E10,585

552.55s.23ri 30.369.024 5ti2.921 .262

Accumulated Depreciation Bcginning Additions Disposal Ending

Building

Plant & warehouse building,
machineries and equipmenl

Fumiture, fixture and equipmenl

Transportation
Other equipment

106,871,905

lE,tl1,627
29,911,301
2.251,934

1325.781
6,403,318
6,144,110

515.556

tt4,197,692
25,2r4,94S
36,718,415

2.110.490

P 1.416,337 P 3.086,509 P P 4.502.8{6

159.329.r06 24,0?5.2E0 lE-1.401.-3E6

Accumulated Impairment

Land (Nore 18)

Net Book Value P 393.226.132 P 6,293.741 P P 399,519,876

Property and equipment are subject to annual impairment testing and whenever there is an

indication of impairment (See Note 3.10).

Acquisitions duing the year
During 2020, the Company entered in construction contract to build an office building on the
lot area acquired in Davao in 2019. The offtce building is 10070 completed as of December 31,

2021 at a cost ofP16,049,488.

Various furniture, fixtures and equipment were acquired at a cost ofP5,883,186.

Transportation equipment were acquired at a cost of P2,591,518 for Company's operating

activities.

Warehouse and other equipment were acquired amounting to P468,092.

Appraisal of Property

Properties in Dasmainas, Cavite
The Company's four parcels of land with improvements located within First Cavite Industrial
Estate, Barangay Langkaan, Dasmarinas, Cavite was appraised on December 5, 2019 by
Emprisa lnno Solutions, Inc based on its highest and best use. Highest and best use is defined
as the most profitable likely use of the property that will generate the maximum retum of
investment for a certain period of time. The opinion may be based on the highest and most
profitable continuous use to which the property is adapted and needed, or that use ofland, which
may reasonably be expected to produce the greatest net retum to land over a given period of
time.

The valuation process involved comparing, analyzing, and relating the similar comparable
properties to the land being appraised, and employing the weighted adjustments to compensate

for the differences (various factors such as size, shape, location, present development and time
element were considered in the valuation and as basis of comparison).
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The buildings/improvements are evaluated using Cost Approach Method. The Cost Approach
Method is a process that involves analyzing and estimating the reproduction or replacement

cost and estimating the accrued depreciation with due consideration to physical deterioration,
functional and extemal obsolescence.

The fair market value of land was estimated at P96,104,400 while the building/improvements
was estimated at P112,825,733 for atestimated total appraised value of land and improvements
ofP208,930,133. Based on the appraisal on the land and comparing the same with its carrying
amount, the Company recognized a recovery of impairment loss in 2019 amounting to
P2,559,358.

Land in EDSA/SIa. Rita Street, Guadalupe Nuevo
On November 28, 2019, the Company's property consisting ofa parcel ofland containing an

area of 951 square meters located along Epifanio delos Santos Avenue and Sta. Rita Street,

Guadalupe Nuevo, Makati City was appraised by Emprissa Inno Solutions, Inc. based on Fair
Market Value. Based on analysis ofthe property itself, the highest and best use was determined

to be commerciavresidential utility. The valuation process involved comparing, analyzing, and

relating the similar comparable properties to the land being appraised, and anploying the
weighted adjustments to compensate for the differences (various factors such as size, shape,

location, present development and time element were considered in the valuation and as basis

of comparison).

Based on data gathered with due consideration to size, shape, neighborhood development and

location, the fair market value of land was estimated at PI71,180,000 while the

building/improvements was estimated at P126,863,760 for an estimated total appraised value
of land and improvernents ofP297,863,760.

Land in Mactan Street, Guadalupe Nuevo
On Decernber 05, 2019, the Company's property consisting of a parcel of land containing an

area of 200 square meters and a one storey semi-lofty structure with mezzanine located Mactan
Street, Guadalupe Nuevo, Makati City was appraised by Emprisa Inno Solutions, Inc. based on
Fair Market Value. Based on analysis of the property itself, the highest and best use was

determined to be residential utility. The valuation process involved comparing, analyzing, and

relating the similar comparable properties to the land being appraised, and employing the
weighted adjustments to compensate for the differences (various facton such as size, shape,

location, present development and time element were considered in the valuation and as basis
ofcomparison).

Based on data gathered with due consideration to size, shape, neighborhood development and

location, the fair market value was estimated to be P85,000 per squre meter or PI7,000.000
for the land and P1,285,714 for the structure or a total of Pl8,286,000.

In 2016, the Company's management has opted to use this land as site fortheirnew head office,
thus this property amounting to P53,923,152 was reclassified to Property, Plant and Equipment.

The amount ofdepreciation is allocated between the following

2021 2070

Cost ofsales and services (Note 15)

Crneraland administrative eryense (Note l8)
P 3,987,198

14,726,961

5,876,791

18,198,489

P
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Collateral to Loans
The Company's four lots aggregating 22,882 sq. m. in First Cavite Industrial Estate (FCIE),
Barangay Langkaan, Dasmarinas, Cavite, where its plant is erected, and the 951 sqm. lot in
Guadalupe, Makati City were used as collateral to multiple credit facilities approved by a local
commercial bank with total carrying value amounting to P359,622 ,177 . (See Note 16.1)

The credit facility of one of the banks also provides that there will be no partial release of
collateral while the facilities are still outstanding. The bank reserves the right at any time in its
sole discretion to require the submission ofcollateral on additional collateral.

Notc l2 - INTAIIGIBLE ASSETS

The intangible assels ofthe Company pertain to computer software license

The computer software is presently used for the accounting system. The reconciliation of the

carrying amounts at the beginning and end of 2021 and 2020 and the gross carrying amounts

and the accumulated amortization ofintangible assets are presented as Intangible Assets, net in
the Statements ofFinancial Position as follows:

2021 2AO

Beginning balance

Additions
Arnofi ization forthe year (Note l8)

1,223,r42
|,076,778

865,512 )

1,172,989

686,741

636,588 )

P

P r,434,40E P 1,223,142

In 2021, the Company acquired additional computer software for service management system,

warranty and license for firewall protection and computer upgmde.

Note 13 - PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER ASSETS

This account consists of;
2020

Currenl assets

Creditable withholding tax

Prcpayrrgnts ( Note I 3. I )

Non-currenl assets

Deposit to suppliels /r'{ore ,13.2)

Rental Deposits fNore 30. //
Other Deposits

P 6,200,428 P

P rJ83Jss
829,964

r3,500

P 5.7,15,128

4ssJ00 885.424

P

P

885,424

P 2226,819 P 3,313,058

13,1 Prepaymurts

Prepayments pertains to the deferment of semi - annual prepaid health insurance of the

Company's officers and employees.

J8

2021

P

L482,354

8r7,164

13,500



13.2 Deposit to suppliers

In 2020, advance payment was made to the contractor for the construction ofthe Company's
warehouse building in Davao (See Note l0). Carrying value of advances to contractors

amounted to P1,383,355 and P2,482,394 for the year 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Note 14 - TRADE AllD OTHER PAYABLES

This account consists of the following:

2021 2020

P 122,565,299

14.1 Trade Payables

This account represents amounts due to suppliers ofgoods and services for the production of
its products.

14.2 Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses consist ofthe following:

' zozr 2o2o

Trade payables (Note I 4. I )
Accrued experses (|iote 14.2)

Refirnd liability /No te 3.5 & 8)

Accrued Wananty Expenses

Accrued Irstallation Rebates

Accrued Sales Discount

Accrued Liab ity

P 105,787,682

13,418,154

3,359,463

P 1w,ffi,682
13,181,188

33s9,46j
P 12620s333

P 3,846,468

2,699,615

433,813

6,438,258

2,684282

3,1662t8

1,711,168

5,019,519

P

P 13,418,154 P 13,181,188

The Company make provisions for sales discounts and installation rebates that should be

maintained at a certain level based on the sales for the month ranging from .2o/o to 6%o.

Installation rebates are expensed out as part ofinstallation costs/service calls ir cost ofservices
(Note 18.1) amounted to P16,737,806 and P14,610,981 in 2021 and 2020, respectively. Sales

retums and discounts netted out from sales totaled P145,383,502 and P111,058,794 in 2021

and 2020, respect ively. (See Note l7)

Accrued liability amounting to P6,223,258 represents reversals ofcheck disbursernents that are

determined to b€ unreleased as ofDecember 31, 2021 which were paid subsequently in January
2022 and accrual of audit fee amounting to P2 I 5 ,000 .
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Note 15 - OTHER NON-TRADE PAYABLES

Financiol liabilities al smortized cost - o rcr paJioble

This consists of the following:

202'l

Interest Payabh (Note l6)
Deposit from Supplbrs (Note 15.1)

Non-trade payables (Note 15.2)

Dw oBIR (Note 14.j)

Stttrtuy pyabb, Qlote I 4 .4 )

15.3 Due to BIR

VAT Payable (Note 21. j)
Witlrholding Tax Payabb -Expan&d (Note 21.3)

Withholding Tax Payabl€ - Compemation /ilore 2/.1)

P 4,134,197 P 6,415,314

2021 2020

P 5,591,177
6,298,237

7,6(5230
5,819,815

29,8M

P

P 11,89 t4 P 13509,850

15.1 Deposit from suppliers

The amount of P6,298,237 atdP5,819,815 in 2021 and 2020, respectively, represents cash

bonds deposited by third party authorized service centers to the Company.

15.2 Non+rade payable

Represents accrual of non-trade payables as ofDecember 3\,2021.

Due to Government Agencies
' 2o2l ' 2fl2(

P 3,583,525

550,672

5,668,236

747,078

P

P 3,271,908

250,593

61,024

5386359

256,171

25,7N

P

P 3,583,525 P s,668236

15.4 Statutory payable

SSS Contrbution Payable

Me dicare Contnbution Payable

Pag-rbig Contnbution Payable

2021 2020

P 371,903 P

112,269

66,500

25647r
233N2
25't,@5

P 550,672 P 747,078
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2021 2020

Current
Noncurrent

P 3s9,622,177
18,694,403

369,382228
18,694303

P

The roll-forward of loans is as follows:

P 378.316,58t)

2021

Beginning
Addition
Payment
Ending

P

Credit Facilities
Accomodat ion

369 342,228
338,616,271

(348,436,322)

I-ong Term
Loan

ta,694,403

P 359,42,177 P | 8,694,103

Beginning
Addition
Pay ment
Ending

P

Credit Facilities
Accomodat ion

43s,112,501
|,0L7,591 ,790

(1,083,388,062)

lnng Telm
Loan

t 8,694,403P

369.382,228 P t 8,694,403

The total finance costs incurred amounted lo P7,439,205 and Pl0,161,941 in 2021 and 2020,
respectively. Interest accrued amounts to P5,597,177 ard P7,660,230 in 2021 alJid 2020,
respectively. (See Note 14)

16.1 Bank Credit Linas

2021 2020

P

Beginning
Addition
PayrrEnt
Frding

369 342,224
334,676,271

(348,436r22)
P 359,622,177

435,172,501

1,017 ,597 ,790
I 88 (l/t2

P

3@ 342,22t4

The Company has various credit facilities/accommodations approved by three (3) local
conrmercial banks aggregating Io P359,622,177 and P369,382,228 irt 2021 and 2020,
respectively.

These credit facilities/accommodations include omnibus credit lines (with sublimit on letters of
credits/trust receipt (LCTR), foreign standby letters of credit, and discounting lines), working
capital loan lines and domestic bills purchased lines payable within a minimum of30 days or a
maximum of 365 days upon availrnent, with interest stated at prevailing market rate of 3.25V6

payable and repriced monthly. The credit facility agreements will expire January, February and

July of202l.

P
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Note 16 -LOANS

This account consists ofthe following:

P 388.076.632

2020



The four lots with 22,882 sq. m. located in First Cavile Industrial Estate and the 951 square

meter lot in Guadalupe, Makati Cily were used as collaterals to the above credit
facilities/accommodations (see Note I I ).

The credit facility of one of the banks also provides that there will be no partial release of
collateral while the facilities are still outstanding. The bank reserves the right at any time in its
sole discretion to require the submission ofcollateral on additional collateral.

Total interest expense incurred in these loans amounted lo P7,439,205 andPl0,l61,941 in202l
and 2020, respectively.

16,2 Long - term Loon

20zt 2020
Beginning
Addition
Payment
Ending

P r 8,694,404 P 18,694.404

P 18,694,404

The Company obtained unsecured, non - interest bearing advances from its former shareholder

for working capital requircments and capital expenditures in 2008 and prior years. As at

reporting date, the Company reserves the unconditional right to make or defer payment. (See

Note 23a)

2021 2020

9les

lEss: Sales retums

Sales discounts

Scrvic€ Income

Total

P

(

(

P

(

(

1,767 ,549,619

71,9,10,650)

73.4,12,1i52)

62,388,798

1,821,891,55i

31.058,43i)

77,000,3y)

51ffi,15t
P 1,684,554,914 P 1,761,473,514
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Note 17 - SALES AND SERVICES

This account consisls of the following:



Note 18 - COST OF SALES AND Sf,RVICES

This accounl consists olthe following: ,

Beginning Inventory

Add: Purchases

Dircct labor

Faclory overhead (Xote ./8.2)

TotalCoods Available For Sale

L€ss: Endinglnvsltory tr'of 9/

Tolal
lnvcntory lnss fNole 9)

Cost ofGoods Sold

Add: Cost ofservices (Nok 1&,1,/

2021 2020

P 566,494,610

1,059,408,500

I I,107,879

31,509,261

P

t,674,520,255

42s,540,658

1,858,903,678

566,494,610

I,248,979,597 1,292,409,068

2,376,518

1.218.97S.597

47,700,881

Installation Costs/Service Calls

Service Supplies

P

'P 47Joo,t8l 'P 34,958,195

Installation costs include costs of service centers contracted by the Company.

1,294,'185,647

34,958,195

TotalCost of Sales and Scnices P 1196,680,479 P

As at December 31,2020, the Company recognized inventory loss amounting to P2,376,578
(See Note 8)

I8.1 The breakdown ofcost ofservices is as follows:

2021, 2020

23,@,W
r,294,131

P

43

507,387,079

1,3M,665,0s9

I1,683,623

35,167,918

I ,329,7 43,842

32353,216
l sJ47,66s



18.2 The breakdown of factory overhead is as follows:

Repairs & rnaintenance
Taxes & licenses (Note 22.3)
Depreciation eryense (Note l I )
Ernployee benefits
Security & Janitorial
Salaries & wages
Light & water
Office s upplies
Insurance & bond premiums
Research & developrnent
Plant s upplies
StaffConference
Gas & oil
Telephone & comrnunication
Dues & subscription
Motor vehicle elpense
Comrnission & lncentives
Transportation & travel
Accountable forrns
Training & seminar
Representation erqpense

I-egal & notarial
Docurnentary Starnps
Postage & s tarrqrs

P

184
P 37,509,267 P 35,167,918

2021 zo20
5,757,955
7,985,680
5,476,191
1,781,444
2,186,986
2,238,26
1,962,539

947,946
1,301y'96

503,106
r,923123

8l l ,648
356474
454,776
357,8U
258,803
176,750
10t,723
t76,313

l,l oo
3,182
3,150

l,

Note 19 - OTHER INCOME and EXPENSES

This accounl consists ofthe following:

Other Income
Interest income

Investments mBcnds Qlote 6)

Savings and Time Depsits (Note 5)

Miscellaneous income:

Assemb$ fee (Note 30.2)
Unrealized forex gain

Recovery of allowance for credit k*ses (Note 7)

2021 2020

P 4,259,734
2a7 ,097

10,207,763
7 41,07 4

3,811,t62
829,531

P

1E,095,377

341s292
P 15,495,661 P 26.151.362

Other Expenses

This account pertains uruealized loss on foreign exchange transactions amounting to P-nil- and

P219,284 as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. (See Note 5)

44

10,806,757
5,7-18,97 5
3,987,198
2,749,O32
2 j33,476
2,246,222
r,95r,584
1,s0s396
13t4,9s7
1,017,856
r,o043sr

9l 6,861
522,O36
452232
352J44
300573
114,25O

60,919
42,580

6,861
3.279
l,6oo

90



Note 20 - SELLING EXPENSES

This account consists ofthe follou ing:

Advertising a.rrd Promolion (See Note 20.1)

Shippnrg & Delivery
Salesmar Colrmission

20.1 Advertising and Promotion

This account consists ofthe following:

Ads pJacement

Installation rebates
Warranty epense

723s6,7A7 P r00,843,211

2021 2020

P 30,855,814
36,617,426
4,883,547

61,974,367

38,658,890
209,951

P

P

20202021

P 25,911,722

4,908,092

42,470,576
14,610.98 |

4,892,810

P

P 30,E55,E14 P 61.9'71,367

Note 21 - GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATM EXPENSES

This account consists of the following:
2021 2020

Salaries and Wages

Dep reciation Ep eme fNol€ 7-a

Pension Exp ense (Note 26 ,
Ta,€s and Licenses (,Vo1e 22-3)
St aff Conference
Employe€s & Fringe Benefits
Cas & Oil
Professional, L al and Notadal Fees

Communication, Postage & Stamps
Office and warehouse Supplies
Ught and Water
Directorc F ef, (Note 2 3c)
Security and Janitorial
Rental Expense (Note J0.,
Motor Vehicle Epenses
Transportation & Travel
Health Insurar:ce Prernium
Repairs & M aintenaice
Representation Expense
Dues & Subscription
Provision for credit losses (Note 7)

Amortization of intanEble (Note 1 2)
Persormel Re.1litment
Research and Developmmt
Insurance & Bond Prernium
Trainings & Seminars

Bar* charges

Board Meeting
Def\cie,,rcy Ta-\es (Note 22.3)
M iscellaneous Expenses

P 121,161,O13
14,726,961
E,898,2t7
8,3t5,E24
7,525,136
4,8,14,513
4,478,922
4,043,965
3,197,694
3,453,760
3,245,667
2,659,474
2,522,466
2,400,100
2,366,4s4
2,019,o92
1,?39,083
1,67-1,s88

1,686,70r
1j349,O29
1,021,455

865.512
614,241
457,805
431.602
85.070
1o,447
3.166

I03,560,257
17,969,565
6,454,1 l1

I1,410,465
7,196,407
3,91'7,244
3,t24,099
1,691,034
3,991,557
3,s06,405
2,749,364
2,559,474
2,491,689
2,388,57r
2,125,183
2,283,2A6
2,4',73,423

92',7,556

1,561,429
1,390,7'71

275,436
86s,512
122,878

t,423,t32
523,6'7 4
56,608
15,170
31,52 t

3,603,996
23,t32

P

13,625
PP 2O7,t81,622 190,',718,949
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Note 22 - INCOME TAX

22.1 Inconte Tax Expense (beneJit)

Current taxexpense

Deferred taxepense

Income tax expense

22,2 Defened Taxes

This account consists ofthe following:

l!:rr

P 22,111,925 P 48.044.114

Trx Bs. Anrut

2021 2020

P 30,106,055
7.964.1 3r ) (

50,0r 0,748

r.966.634 )

P

(

P 22,141,925 P 48,044,114

The reconciliation oftax on pre-tax income computed at the applicable statutory rates to tax
expense attributable to continuing operations are shown on the schedule below:

2021 2020

Tax on pretax income at 25oZ

Adjustments for income subject to
lower tax rates

N on-deductible intercst expense
Disallowed penahy

Disallowed inventory loss

lntercst income
DTA Adjustments - retirement tiability

DTA Adjustments - unrealized forex loss

DTA Adjustments - acruarial loss

Reversal of unrealized forcx loss

Reversal ofDTA on warmnty and rebates

Reversal of DTA on allowance for inventory obsolesceflce

Additional DTA on allowance for sales retums and allowances

P 29.096,621 P 47)81295

7 06.259
227,311

1,136.706 )
762,402 \

1,457,75r )
4,531,036 )

1,r 57998
459429

t,081,199
7t2973

r J92208 )

:0:t

RlriEmnl hbiay fX,a ,t rl

R.EE 1of DrA o@bd fGr ts

43!16,8ll P 10J5!J03 P 8,,149,127 P

5J96J87

lJ69Jl0I (

t12t,t5J

5t3l,M

2,lr2Jt7 I
1J49,147

l9l.r'1)
215J64

tl51:1rl

51,46{J38 P

5J96J87
6.a505fl}

t6,75t.075
5,0't0,612

741.074,
5J',79J86

6I50J00 1612i23

t6152915 1,1E80r9

5!70i32 r267tr58

828136 2nJc4
,lJ58Jll l.l89JE3

5$ r,a5,.!______!JIJll-i

t2,866,560

tJ49,l,t,
t,6r!.6r5
a.lEE,0l9
1J67,658

It5J69

P 4.78.2.?4t P 2r,5,13,666
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182,746

s9216
554191

( 2.r53.03r )



22.3 Supplenrentary information in compliance with RRlS-2010

Vat Payable

vAT Palablc (Jan. 1,2021)

vrtrble Ssles/Recelpts for 2021

Zero-raled sabVreceipts

B€m sales/receifrs

P 1191,7A,677 P 201371,521

1.691;16,,677 l0lJ7l-5tl

I ? t 1.17'

O tput ltAT
P s,386,359

89,496.187

224219

!_____rl_fq!

Irss:
Alowable Inprn Tax:

Puchases for ore year

lnput tax beg

lnput Tax Deferred on capilal goods exceeding P lM ftom prev. perbd

lnBt Tax Carrid nom Curent perird

Puchase ofcapitalgoods tlol exceeding Plm
Purchase ofcapilal g006 exceeding P lm
DorEsti Plmllase ofcrods oder dtan €apilal Soods

IiDortatbn of good, oaher tltan calital Soods

DoirFsti Purhase of S€rvtes

Total curent purchases

Toral A\iaibbb InFI Tax

Irss:Dedlrtbrls
IiFr Tax m cafilal 8oo& exceeding PlMdeferrcd for succeeding lerbd
l!ry{ Tax albcable lo cxarq sabs

InFn tax EId

SubTotal

Total Albwabb InFr Tax

Nct VAT PalBble (Overprlm€nt) for 2021 b

l€ssi PaynEnls

RemittarEe of VAT Pa)€ble, D€c. 3l,2020
Renittarre of 2ml VAT Payable (Jannry to Noltirber,202l)

T,r S.lll P.yibl€ (ov.rp.!rn nt)(r+b-c)

Withholdins Taxes

Compensation

Remittance of WT Payable, Dec. 31, 2020

Remittance of WT Payable (January to NoYember, 2021)

Expanded

Remittance of WT Payable, Dec. 31,2020

Remittance of WT Payable (January to November, 2021)

Creditable Withholdins Tox

Crediable withtnldtng Tax (BIR Fom 2j07)
Falarre, Jar l, 2021

Add: Geditable uithtplding trx rccei red fq tr fca
l-ess; Applicaticns rnde

Applicatian nade cn 2020 irrcom ax payable

Applic*iar nade dring tteltzr 2021

Balarce, Dc. 31, 2021

P

874i26l97 104.955.112

119lllJ12
991.E17,1,10

r4J06561

n916l.69l

ll9:61,693

I l9:61,693

5J86J59
80,837920

P

Remitted Accrued

25,7N

420,680

P 256,r',77

2J08Jsi

P

7,s38,788

10,010298

2538,788
15,755,46

12s4q086
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P 61.024

P 250,593



Taxes and Licenses

land Administrative
M unicipal Taxes

Real [ltate Taxes
Registration Fees

Inspection Fees

Conrnunity Tax Ccrtificates
DocunEntary Stanrp Tax
Others

Factory Overhead
Real hopefiy Taxes and o,'het Fees (Note 17-2)

2021 2020

4J88,492
2,7 59,57 6

t,047,068
61,4\5
l 1,450

4.1,823

P 11,250,062

'7 3A)
22.681

90
130,330

8J 15,824 11,410,465

7,985,6805 738 975

P 14,054,199 P 19,396.r 45

Onsoins Tax Audit and Settlemanls

On October 13,2021, the Company received Letter of Authority (LOA) 544-2021-0000321
dated October 12,2021 coveing all intemal revenue taxes including documentary stamp tax
and other taxes for the period January 1, 2020 to December 31, 2021. This LOA is still pending
assessment as of December 31, 2021.

On September 15, 2020, the Company received Leuer of Authority (LOA) 54A-2020-0000209
dated September 15, 2020 covering all intemal revenue taxes including documentary stamp tax
and other taxes for the period January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019. In 2020, this LOA was
settled amounting 10 P I,802,044.

22.4 Recent Tax Regulation

The following are the major changes brought by new tax regulations that are relevant to
the company:

a) On December 1,9, 2017 , President Rodrigo Duterte signed into law package 1 of the
Tax Reform for Acceleration and Inclusion (.'TRAIN) bill of or Republic Act No.
10963. The law contains amendments to several provisions ofthe National Intemal
Revenue Code of 1997 on individual income taxation, passive income for both
individuals and corporations, estate tax, donor's tax, value added tax (VAT), excise
tax, and documentary stamp tax ("DST"), among others. The said law shall be in
effect starting on January 4,2018.

b) REVENUE R-EGULATIONS NO. I -2016 issued on January 5, 2016 with respect to
"De Minimis Benefits", stating "Benefits received by an employee by virtue of a

collective bargaining agreement (CBA) and productivity incentive schemes provided
that the total armual monetary value received from both CBA and productivity
incentive schemes combined do not exceed ten thousand pesos (Php 10,000.00) per
employee per taxable year".

c) REVENUE REGULATIONS NO. 3-2016 issued on March 13, 2016 implements the
provision ofRepublic Act No. 10653, more particularly on the increase to P 82,000.00
of the total amount of exclusion from gross income for 13th month pay and other
benefits beginning January 1, 2016, and shall in no case apply to other compensation
received by an employee under an employer-employee relationship, such as basic

salary and other allowances.
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d) REVENUE REGULATIONS NO. 5-2016 issued on March 17,2016 amends Revenue
Regulations (RR) No. 6-201 5 and imposes penalties to taxpayers mandatorily covered
by the Electronic Filing and Payment System (eFPS) or Electronic Bureau of lntemal
Revenue Forms (eBIRFomis) who failed to file tax returns under the electronic
systems of the BIR.

e) REVENUE REGULATIONS NO. 12-2015 amends Section 2.58.5 of Revenue

Regulation No. 2-98 Requirements of deductibility. Any income payment which is
otherwise deductible under the Code shall be allowed as a deduction from the payors'
gross income only if it shown that the income tax required to be withheld has been paid

to the Bureau in accordance with Secs. 57 and 58 of the Code. "No deduction will
also be allowed notwithstanding payments of withholding tax at the time ofthe audit
investigation or reinvestigation/reconsideration in cases where no withholding of tax
was made in accordance with Secs. 57 and 58 ofthe Code."

0 REVENUE REGULATION NO. 2-2016 issued on February 3, 2016 prescribes the

Income Tax forms, which will be used for lncome Tax Retums (ITRs) filing covering
and starting taxable year December 31, 2015 by all taxpayer who are required to file
their ITRs under Section 5l (A)(l ) ofthe Tax Code and those who are nol required to

file under Section 51(A) (2) but who opted to do so BIR Form No. 1700, 1702-

RT, 1702-EX, 1702-MX version June 2015. The requirement for entering centavos

in the ITR has been eliminated.

Note 23 - RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

The transactions between related parties are based on terms similar to those offered to non-
related parties. Parties are related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control
the other party or exercise significant inlluence over the other party in making financial and

operating decisiors and the parties are subject to common control or cornmon significant
influence. Related parties may be individuals or corporate entities.

a. Due to Related Parties

The Company obtained unsecure, non-interest-bearing advances fiom its former
shareholder for working capital requirements and capital expenditure in 2008 and prior
years which has an outstanding balance ofPl8,694,404 for both years 2021 ar.d 2020,
respectively. (See Note 16.2)

b. Key Management Compensation

Key management personnel of the Company include all management committee
officers. The compensation of key management personnel for the year totals
P6,705,441 and P5,925,062 for 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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Below is the breakdown as follows:

Salaries

Short-tem benefits

SSS/IIDMF contnbutions

Health insurance

Errployee benefits

[rng-term benefits

Retirernent benefts
Total

' 2o2t 2020

1,292,987

191942
17,518

38,454

3,749,824

16r.,729

67,839

34,U4

2,101,542

c. Director's fee

The Company made payment in its directors amounting to P2,659,47 4 and P2,559,47 4

as a ofDecember 3l,2O2l and 2020, respectively. (See Note 21)

d. Advances to officers and employees

The Company made advances to its officers and employees with outstanding
balance of P4,259,630 andP4,270,877 for the year 2021 and 2020, respectively.
(See Note 7)

Note 24 - EARNINGS PER SHARE

The Company's basic eamings per share were computed as follow:

2021 2020

Net InconE

Divided by weighted average

outstanding s hares

P P l@,893,515

50,m0,000

P l.8t P 2.20

Note 25 - EQIIITY

25,1 Share Capital

The Company's authorized capital stock amounting to P500,000,000 divided into 50,000,000

shares is fully subscribed and paid-up for both year 2021 and 2020. (see Note 1)

50

1,905,826

P 6,705,441
tP s925,062

94244,ssE

50,000,000



25.3 Other Comprehensite Income

Analysis of other comprehensive income is presented as follows

202t

Actuarial gains/losses

- DBO 'I otal

Beginning Balance

Changes during the year

(P 13.59-r,109)

9,5.r5,672

l-1,593,r09)

9,545,612

(P

(P 1,0.r7..r37) ( P {,0,t7,4.17)Ending Balance

2020

Actuarial gains/losses -
DBO Total

Beginning Balance

Changes during the y ear

(P 7,763.343)

5,829,766)

7.'763,313)

s.829.766)

Ending Balance 13.593, t09)

Year 2021
In a meeting held on May 25, 202l,lhe Company's stockholders unanimously approved and

ratihed the declaration and distribution of l67o cash dividends to all stockholders of record as

ofMay 25,2021in the total amount ofP80,000,000 to be taken out ofUnappropriated Retained
Eamings as audited by the extemal auditors.

These dividends represented dividends appropriated in 2020

Year 2019
On May 29, 2019, the Company's stockholders unanimously approved and ratified the
declaration and distribution of sixteen (16%) percent cash dividends to all stockholders of
record in total amount ofP80,000,000 to be paid out in 2020.

(P r3,593.109) ( P
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25.5 Dividcnd Decloration, Appropriation and Pay-out

Year 2020
In a meeting held on July 15, 2020, the Company's stockholders unanimously approved and

ratified the declaration and distribution of sixteen percent (16%) cash dividends to all
stockholders of record as of July 15,2020 amounting to P80,000,000 to be taken out of
Unappropriated Retained F-amings after the completion ofthe audit ofthe Company's financial
statements for 2020.

On July 28, 2020, total dividends paid amounted to P80,000,000 representing dividends
appropriated in 2019.

(P
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The 5-year analyses on retained eamings for the cash dividend declaration is shown as

follows:

5-Yeor Analyses on Retained Eurnitrgs for Cash Dividend Declaration

KOLIN PIIIUPPII{ES INTfR\ATIO\AL I\C.
rclI B.nio litrgk.2n Dismnna. C.vile

AnrlFes of Retained [rmilEs
Coth Dirid.nd D.ctarotio,

20I

A(Hr Nel lncorle aclually eamcd / realizd duriq thc p.riod

Net iEonE (bss) du.iis tlE p€rbd cbsed io R€hiEd EamilF

UiBpproprirt d RetaiEd Eamilss(D.fti). as Adj6t d io

a!€iabh 6r divned d;trbdbr. besinis

S!b-tobl

Add: No+actul bsses

l€ss: NoGactBt / uEliad iEonE lEr oftax
Equiy h lEl iqr ofasso.bi€d i Fir vstue

Uff€albd t|rEign exclElEE tsin - rEt (except tlDst aitbutable to

Cash ad cash equivalent)

Ulr€aliEd aciBrbl gah

Fai !"lE adjustrEr! (Ma*.r lo mrket gails)

Fai !"lE adjEEErr ofii/.shEnl property rEsuliE lo gan

AdjusEE dlE b devbtbn 6om PFRS / GAAP- gair

OtlEr rrlEaliud gaits or adjusEEd io dle r€taiEd .arniEs

as a rEsut ofcenah rarEactbff accouned 6r
uder fie PFRS

91.138.549

P 462.596.212

93.138,549

P 555.73,1.82r

80.000.000

Deprecbtbn on reiallatbn i'ErerEti

AdjusEEr dE Lo devbtbn ftom PIRS GAAP- bs
Fai EIE adjBtrerr (Ma*et !o ma*et bsses)

UlIEaH t reign erclnrBe bss

t-oss on A; lalle adiuslE ofiJ\€stur propeny (Atur Tar)

Add (bis):

Cash divited dechillbn dltiE tlE perbd

Sro.k diviied dechElion d'riB 0E perild

Appmprbt'niis ofrebnEd eamius duri'E tE perild

F.Evelsal of appmprilioru
E&cB ofprbr perbd adjBtErr
Trca$fy dtarcs

Net Imom..tullt erred duriqB th€ period

MTAL RETAINED f,ARNINGS (DIIICIII E\D
AVAILABLE I()R DIVIDf,ND

APPROPR IATED RETAINf,D f,ARNINGS

8.8-irB
Ad: AppopriatbE duiB dE War

Divil€nds palt

A?PROPRIATf, D RETAIIED f,ARNINGS. [\D
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2 5,6 Prior Period Adjustment

On February 4, 2021, the Bicameral Conference Committee approved the Corporate Recovery

and Tax Incentives for Enterprises (CREATE) Act and the final version was subsequently
ratified by the Congress. Pursuant to Sec. 27 of Article VI ofthe 1987 Philippine Constitution,
every bill passed by the Congress shall, before it becomes a law, be presented to the President
for his approval. The President also has the power to velo it and retum the same with his
objections to the House for reconsideration. If, after such reconsideration, tworhtd (2/3) ofall
the members ofthe House shall agree to pass the bill, it shall become a law.

Given the approval of CREATE Act, the Company used the revised tax rate of 25%o in
computing for deferred taxes beginning January l, 2021. Such rate is applicable for all domestic
corporation with total assets of Pl00 million and below, and with net taxable income of P5

million and below. The rest shall be taxed at 25%.

The change in future tax rate resulted to a prior period adjustments in deferred tax asset as

shown in below:

Defened Tax

Asset

Unappropriated

Retained Eaminss

Bahnces, Jan. 1,2021 before restatem€nt

Prior pedi adjustments:

Defered tax assets ( 35s228e) ( 3,5s228e )

Bahnces, Jan. l, 2021 after restatement P t7;76t445 P 46.2,596272

Note 26 - EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

26.1 Short Term Benefits

The Company currently provides short-term benefits to its employees such as 13t month pay,

bonus, leave and other benefits. Expenses recognized for employee benefits are as follows:

' zozt zuo
Cost of sales

General and Adminisha tive

P 2,789,032

4,844,513

t,181,441

3,917 241
P 7,633,545 P 5,698,689

26.2 Long-Term Benetits

As at 2021 and 2020, the Company provided ernployee retirement benefits amounting to
P8,898,217 and P6,454,1 1 I, respectively. (See Note 2l )

26.3 Retiremcnt Liabili6

The most recent actuarial valuations ofthe present value ofthe defined benefit obligation
were carried out at December 31, Z02l, by EM Zalamea Actuarial Services, Inc. in the
latter's report dated December 10,2021 . The Present Value of defmed beneflt obligation,
and the related current service cost, was measured using Projected Unit Credit Method
taking into account the factors of interest, mortality, viability and salary projection rates.
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P 21,313J34 P ,166,148,561

a) Characteistics of Defned Benefits Plan and its Associated Risks



The Company's retirement plan is a non-contributory defined benefit type which provides

retirement benefit eqtal lo 22.5 days' Pay for every year of credited service in accordance

with the Retirement Law (Republic Act No. 7641). The benefit is paid in lump sum upon

retirement or separation in accordance with the terms ofthe Plan

The following table summarizes the components of pension expense recognized in the
3Company's consolidated Statement ofComprehensive lncone and the fi.rnded status and

amounts recognized in the Company's Consolidated Statement ofFinancial Position.

b) Amounts Recogttizcd in the Financial Statements

The Pension Expense recoglized in Profit or Loss as ofDecember 31,2021 and 2020
are as follow:

2021 2020

Culent Service Cost

Interest Cost

Intercst Income on Plan Assets

P E,E9E,2I7 P 6.4-s4.1I I

Re - measurement effects to be recognized outside of profit or loss and into other
comprehensive income in the Statements of Comprehensive Income are as follow:

202t 2020

7,016,941

2,025,926

204,6s0 )

4,7751/l
1,883,971

205,301

P

Actuarial gains (losses)

Remeasurement loss on plan asset

Beginning

Olrrent Service Cost

Intercst Cost

Past Service Cost

Benefits Paid

Actuadal gains (loss) on :

- Ctranges in financial assurption
- Eeerience

{hange in demographic assunption

Ending

( P 12$2r,4E,r)
93922

P 8,289,61I

38,626

12,721,562 |
3,!81,891

8,328,237

2398371 )TaxEffect
( P 9,545,671, ) P 5,829;t6

The movements in the present value of obligation for 2021 and 2020 are as follow:

2021 2020

P 50,902,660

7,07684t
2,02s926

(2,88sJs9)

7,933,E64 )
4,431,088 ) (

456,532 )

3s,953,637

4;t'75441

1,883,971

9,4r,8,778

1, t79,167 )

P 50.902.660

P

(

(

(

P 44,298,684
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The changes in the fair value ofplan assels are as follow

2021

PBegin n ing

Intercst inconE

Retum on Plan Assets

Contributions

Benefits paid fromplan assets

Ending

Present Value ofDBO

FairValue ofPA
Frding

4,E34F39 P

204,650
93,922 ', (

3,500,000

2,E85359 )
P 5,560,008 P 4,834,639

3,t61,W
205,301

38,626 )

I,500,000

The Retirement Trust Fund assets are valued by the fund manager at fair value using

the mark-to-market valuation. While no significant changes in asset allocation are

expected in the next financial year, the Retirement Plan Trustee may make changes at

any time.

The Pension Benefit Obligation to be recognized as retirement liability in the Statemenl
of Financial Position as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 are P38,738,676 and

P 46,068,021, respectively.

202t 2020

P 44,29E,684

5,560,008 )

50,902,650

4,834.6.19 )

P

P 36,738,676 P 46,068,021

The principal actuarial assumptions used in determining pension benefit obligation for the

subsidiary's plan follows:

202t 2020

Discount Rate

Salary Projection Rate

Disability Rate

Ret ement Date

Proiected Rettement Benefit

Actuarial Cost Method

Manner of Benefit Payment

5.00% 3.98%
5.00% 5.00%

The Disabitty Study, Period 2

Benefit 5 (Society of Actuaries)

fue 60
22.5 days Pay per year of
service in accordance with
RA7&I
Projected Unit Credit Method

Lump Sum

The valuation results are based on the employee data as ofthe valuation dates as provided by
the Company. The discount rate assumption is based on the PDEx (PDST-R2) benchmark
market yields on goverfinent bonds as ofDecember 5,2019 considering the average years of
remaining working life ofthe employees as the estimated term ofthe benefit obligation.

The mo(ality rate are based on 2017 Philippine Intercompany Mortality table and the 2001

CSO table- generational ( Scale AA. Society of Actuaries) for the year ending December 31,

2021 and 2020, respectively.

2020

(

(
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Sensitivity Analysis

Each Sensitivity Analysis on the significant actuarial assumptions was prepared by remeasuring

the DBO at the balance sheet date after first adjusting one ofthe current assumptions according
to the applicable sensitivity increment or decrement (based on changes in the relevant
assumption that were reasonably possible at the valuation date) while all other assumptions

remained unchanged. The sensitivities were expressed as the corresponding change in the DBO.

It should be noted that the changes assumed to be reasonably possible at the valuation date are

open to subjectivity, and do not consider more complex scenarios in which changes other than
those assumed may be deemed to be more reasonable.

Sensitivity Analysis, 2021 Year-end Dertned Benelit O igation (DBO)

Decrease in DBO due to lOObps lncrease in Discount Rate (6,232,496)

lncrease in DBO due to 100bps Decrease in Discount Rate 7,760.198

Increase in DBO due to loobps lncrease in Salary lncrease Rate 7,678,576 ;

Decrease in DtD due to lOObps Decrease in Salary Decrease Rat (6,286,191) ;

Increase in DBO, No attrition rates '7,728,867

18%

18.8%
-t5.2%

t'7v.
-t4yo

-15.20/"

19.2"

lncrease in DBO, No attrition rctes I1,359,340 : 22.3%

Note 27 - CAPITAL MANAGEMENT OBJECTMS, POLICIES AND PROCEDURf,S

The Company manages its paid up capital, treasury shares and retained eamings as capital.
The Company's over-all objective when managing capital is to maintain its ability to continue
as a going concem entity and to maintain optimal capital structure so as to maximize
shareholder value. In order to or achieve an optimal capital structure, the Company may adjust
the amount of dividend pa).ment, retum capital to shareholders, issue new shares, buy back
issued shares, obtain new borrowhgs or sell assets to reduce borrowings.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the carrying amount of equity as presented on
the face ofthe Statement ofFinancial Position. Capital for the reporting periods under review
is summarized as follows:

2021 2020

Total Liabilities
Total Equity

P 555,650,166

1,056J38,196
586,238,610

|,032,s47 966
P

0.53 PDebt-to-Equity Ratio
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Increase in DBO due to loobps Increa-se in Salary Increase Rate 9,57'7.'774 ;

Decrease in DBO due to 100bps Decrease in Salary Decrease Ral ('1,731,283) :

Sensitivity Analysis, 2020 Year-end DeJined Benelit Obliqation (DBO)

Decrease in DBO due to lOObps Increase in Discount Rate (7,732,610) ;

lncrease in DD due to 100bps Decrease in Discount Rate 9,78'7,162 ,

P 0.57



The Company's goal in capital managenent is to maintain a debt{o-equity structure ratio of
1 :1 to I :2 on a montl y basis as of reporting year, the company has attained its debrto-equity
structure.

The Company sets the amount of capital il proportion to its overall financing structure, i.e.,

equity and financial liabilities. The Company manages the capital structure and makes

adjustments to it in light ofchanges in economic condilions and the risk characteristics ofthe
underlying assets. ln order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may issue

new shares, eam or sell assets to reduce debt.

Note 28 - RISK I\IAI{AGENIENT OBJECTIYES AND POLICIES

28.1 Financial Risk

The Company is exposed to a variety of financial risks through its financial assets, financial
liabilities (insurance contracts and borrowings), reinsurance assets and insurance liabilities. In
particular, the key financial risk is that in the long term, the proceeds of its investments may
not be sufficient to fund the obligations arising from its insurance contracts. The most important
components ofthis financial risk are credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk.

The Company manages these positions within a framework that has been developed through
the years by its investment management team to long-term investment retums in excess of its
obligations under its insurance contracts. The Company periodically produces reports at

portfolio, legal entity and asset and liability class level and circulates these to the Company's
key management team. The principal technique is to match the assets against the liabilities
arising from the insurance contracts by reference to the tlpe of claims payable to the contract

holders. For each claim type, a separate portfolio ofassets is maintained. The Company has not
changed the processes used to manage its risks from previous period.

The carrying value and estimated fair values ofthe Company's financial assets and liabilities
for the year ended December 3l are presented in the table below:

2021 2020

Current Yalue Fair value Cunent Value Fat value

Finoncial asset al anprlted cost

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Receivables

0tler receivables

Investment in bonds
p 756,652,417 P 756,652,417 p 621,\7,0t2 P 627,n1pt2

P 357,174329

313,578,655

5,905,611

79,993,E22

P 3s7,r74,329

313,57t,655

5,905,611

19,993,t22

P 2929(f.82t

278fi0,s67

s,68q624

50,000 m0

P 2n966,821

278N0,561

5$89,O4

50,0m,000

Financial liabilities at atmrtized cosl

Trade Payabhs

Short-term Loans

Retirement Liabflity

t ong-term hans

Other payrbbs

P 122,565,299

359,622,117

38,738,676

It,694,403

I1,E95,414

P 122,565,299

3s9,622,177

38,738,676

18,694,403

I I,E95,414

P 12620s333

369382228

46,068,021

18,694,403

13,s09,8s0

P r262053n

369)82228

46,068,021

18,694,403

13J09,850

P 551,515,969
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The carrying amounts approximate their fair values due to relatively short-term maturity of
these financial instruments. Similarly, the historical cost carrying amounts ofreceivables and

payables approximate their fair values.

The Company does not actively engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative
purposes nor does it write options. The mosl significant financial risks to which the Company
is exposed to are described below together with the Company's risk management policies.

Fair value hierarchv
In determining the fair value of its assets and liabilities, the Company takes into account the
following:

. characteristics ofthe asset and liability being measured that a market participant would
take into account when pricing the asset or liability at measurement date

o for a non-financial asset, the valuation premise that is appropriate for the measurement
. The principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability
o The valuation technique appropriate for the measurernent considering the availability

of data with which to develop inputs that represent the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability; and

o The level of hierarchy within which the inputs are categorized.

A fair value ofa non-financial asset takes into account the highest and best use ofthe asset. The

fair value of a liability reflects non-performance risk including an entity's own risk and

assuming the same non-performing risk before and after the transfer ofliability.

The different levels of financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method have

been defined as follows:

Level I : Quoted prices (unadjusted) in activ€ markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level I that are observable for
the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices);

and
Level 3: lnputs for the asset or liability that is not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs).

As ofDecember 31, 2021, the Company has no financial assets and non-financial assets valued

using any ofthe different levels of financial instruments carried at fair value.

28.2 Currenq isk

The Company's principal transactions are carried out in Philippine Peso (P) and its exposure to
foreign exchange risk arises primarily with the US Dollar (JSD) arises from its investments in
foreign currency deposits.
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The analysis in the next page is performed for reasonably possible movements in key variables
with all other variables held constant, showing the impact on profit before tax (due to changes

in fair value of currency sensitive monetary assets).

Increase(decrease) in Peso
per US$ Depreciation

(Appreciates)
Irpact on Profit
Before tax

+P2
-P2

There is no other impact on the Company's equity other than those already affecting the profit
and loss.

28.3 Credit /?sk

Credit risk arises from cash deposits with banks and financial institutions, including outstanding

other receivables. For banks and financial institutions, only independently rated parties with a

minimum rating of 'A' are accepted.

Deccmber 31, 2021
USD
TJS D

+P2
-P2

219,787
(219,787)

ALIOW IOR CRDIT IJO6S 6

I 122212r5t t rr0:39J37 t ,29orroJ

40 P 902143 P 412:725 ? 8:lrJll P? t22ltl9 P I

Generally, the maximum credit risk exposure of financial assets is the carrying amount of the

financial assets as shown on the face ofthe statement of financial position (or in the detailed

analysis provided in the notes to the financial statements). Credit risk, therefore, is only
disclosed in circumstances where the maximum potential loss differs significantly from the

financial asset's carrying amount.

The information onthe credit quality ofthe Company's financial assets is presented in the tables

below according to the Company's credit ratings ofthe counterparties as ofDecember 31, 2021

and 2020:

Neiter past due nor inpaired

Egh lrledum [.or

Past due or

Inpired Totxl

Cash aldCash Equilalenb

RecehaHes

P 3s6,914J29 P 260,000 P 357,174J29

32sr64051319,4E4,266 5,779,7E5

P356,914329 P319,4E{,166 P260000 P5,779,765 P6t2,43tJE0
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Decerrber 31, 2020

USD
USD

188,489
(188,489)

The Company provides an allowance for credit losses based on their age as follows:

2021



2020

Cash and Crsh Equivahnts

Receivables

Neiter past due nor impaired

High Medium I-orl

Pa$ due or

lnpaircd Tohl

t,:-r:.-1.\:l P X5.0m

284.150.1m 4,758,111

P vL9(f.,811

288,908,fl

n9.i31.821 P284.1501S P2l5,0m ?4.758,311 P581.875.342

High grade pertains to cash and cash equivalents composed of short-term placements and cash

deposits in high ranking banks of the Philippines and the related interests thereon, quoted

financial assets and receivables from counter parties thal are proven to be capable of meeting

its obligations.

Medium grade refers to non-quoted financial assets and receivables from counterparties who
are believed to have an average capability to meet its obligations.

Credit risk exposure in respect of all other counterparties is managed by setting standard

business terms that are required to be met by all counterparties.

During the year, the claims paying ability rating of the Company was maintained at A- (single
A minus) while the Company's USD denominated issuer credit rating remains at B+ (single B
plus) both investmert grade ratings were accorded by Global Credit Rating Co., following an

on-site due diligence in the Philippines.

The Company's corporate sales group and branches group are equipped with specific guidelines

to ensure that overdue accounts do not exceed its strategic level. Cancellation ofpolicies that

exceed the tolerable level is likewise imposed.

28.4 Liquidiry Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company is unable to meet its obligations as they fall due as

a result ofpolicyholders claim payments, cash requirements from contractual commitments, or
other cash outflows, such as debt maturities. Such outflows would deplete available cash

resources for operational, trading and investment activities. In extreme circumstances, lack of
liquidity could result in reductions in the Consolidated Statement ofFinancial Position and sales

of assets, or potentially an inability to fulfill policyholder commitments. The risk that the

Company will be unable to do so is inherent in all insurance operations and can be affected by
a range of institution-specific and market-wide events including but not limited to, credit
events, merger and acquisition activity, systemic shocks and natural disasters.

The Company's liquidity managemenl process, as carried out within the Company and

monitored by a the Company's Treasury team, includes day-to-day funding, managed by
monitoring future cash flows to ensure that requlements can be met, maintaining a portfolio of
higlrly marketable assets that can easily be liquidated as protection against any unforeseen
intemrption to cash flow and monitoring the liquidity ratios of the Company's Consolidated
Statement ofFinancial Position against intemal and regulatory requirements.

Monitoring and reporting takes the form of cash flow measurement and projections for the next
day, week and month, respectively, as these are key periods for liquidity management. The
starting point for those projections is an analysis of the contractual maturity of the financial
liabilities and the expected collection date ofthe financial assets.

Liquidity or funding risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in raising funds to
meet commitments associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risks may result fiom
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difficulty in collections or inability to generate cash inflows as anticipated. The Company's
objective in managing its profile is:

a. To ensure that adequate funding is available at all times;
b. To meet commitments as they arise without incurring unnecessary costs; and,

c. To be able to access funding when needed at the least possible cost.

An analysis of the Company's liabilities relevant to their maturity based on the remaining
period as of reporting date to their contractual maturity and repa).rnent dates is shown in the

table below:

'zo2r
Trade and 0ther Paynbles

Other Cunent Lhb ites

Term Lmm Payabb

Retirement lhbiity

wilhin a vear 2-3 yean {5 yean over 5 years No term

P122,565,299

11,895,41{

35s,622,171 18,694,403

38,738,676

Total

P122,565,299

Pl1,E95,414

37t,316,580

38,738,676

P494,082,890 P18,694,403 P18,738,676 P551,515,969

' zo2o wirhin a year

Trade and Other Payables P126,205J33

Other Curent Lrabftes 13,509,850

Term Loans Palable 369Jt2,228

Retirement hbfity 16,068,0:l

2-3 yean

18,694,403

Tolal

Pt26,205,333

P13,509,850

3EE,076,631

46,068,021

P509,097,411 PI8,694,403 P573,859,835

28.5 Cash flow and fair value interest rute risks

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks are managed by means of derivative financial
instruments, where necessary, to ensure short to medium-term liquidity.

Interest rate risk arises when there is a possible change on interest rate of+100 basis points and

-100 basis points every quarterly re-pricing, which will affect future cash flows or fair value of
financial instruments. These changes are considered to be reasonably possible based on

observation of current market conditions. All other variables are held constant. The Company

has financial liabilities with interest rates re-priced on a quarterly basis as shown below:

in +100 basis mls

2021 Effects on net Effect on

resufts Equfy

Effech on net Effect on

resuhs Eqrty

Short-te n Loans p 1s9,622,177 e3,596,222\ (P2,sr7,355) P3,596,222 P2,517,355

Change in +100 basis points Change in -10 basis points

2020

Short - term Losns P 369,382,228 e 3,693,822) (P 2,585,676) P3,693,822 P 2,585,676

Effects on net

resuhs

Effect on

&W
Eflects on net

resuts

Effect on

E4ufy

ot

45pan overSyean No term

Chanse in -100 bosb poins



Note 29 - EYENTS AI-TER REPORI'ING DATE

29.1a Elfects on the Economy in General and Measures Undertaken

The economic rebound gained momentum in the third quarter of202l despite another COVID-
19 wave. The Philippines has, so far, faced its worst infection wave in Septernber when the 7-
day daily average reached about 21,000 cases due to the Delta variant. In response, the
authorities reimposed stringent mobility restrictions in Metro Manila and other key
metropolitan areas. Nonetheless, compared with previous waves, domestic activity has been
less sensitive to infections. Public containment measures constrained overall mobility less,
while households and firms have learned to cope with infections and diminished mobility. As
a result, the growth momentum was not severely hampered, and the third quarter gowth
surprised on the upside, exceeding market expectations.

The imposition of stringent mobility restrictions which include closure ofmalls whenever there
are infection waves cause effects on the Company's revenues.

The revenues generated during the year are slightly lower than those of 2020 and arotnd 670/o

of2019level.

However, the first quarter revenues of the Company in 2022 have almost attained its 2019
levels. The Company has identified the effect ofthe typhoon calamity which occurred in Cebu
in December of 2021 and continued to affect the sales generated by the branch the coming
quarter triggered also by the loss of electricity. Ifnot for the calamity, the Company may have
surpassed its expectations for the first quarter.

Due to uncertainties of a recurrence of another infection wave, the Company has instituted
certain measures and./or programs to allow the Company to continue its operations despite the
mobility restrictions that may again be imposed.

29.2 Others

There were no other material events that occurred subsequent to December 31, 2021 that were
not reflected in the hnancial statements for the period.

Note 30 - COMI\IITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

30.1 Lease Commilnents

Fot its storc spaces
The Company entered into various cancellable operating lease contracts for its store spaces in
various key provinces covering a period on one year renewable annually with either no
escalation or with 5olo escalation.

Aggregate security deposits in 202 I and 2020 amounted to P829,964 and P 817 ,164 in 2O2l and
2020, respectively. Aggregate rent expense incurred by the Company amounted to P2,400,100
in 2021P2,388,571 n2O2O. (See Notes l3 and 2l)
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30.2 Assembly Services Contracts

The Company enters into one-year renewable assernbly seryices conlract with SkfTrorth
(Philippines) Corporation ("Skl.worth") wherein the Company is appointed as the service
provider in the assembly, inspection or testing of Skyrvorth audio and video products in the
Philippines. Assernbly fees eamed from these Assernbly Services Contracts amounted to
P10,207,763 and PI8,095,377 on December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. (See Note 19)

30.3 Others

As of December 31, 2021, there are no other patding claims and legal actions against or
involving the Company other than those arising from the normal course ofbusiless. Also, the
Company makes various commitments and incurs certain contingent liabilities that are not
given recognition in the accompanying financial statements. The Company's management is of
the opinion that losses, ifany, that may arise from these commitments and contingencies will
not have a material effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements.

Note 3l - NOTES TO STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

The most significant cash flow activities from the consolidated statement ofcash flows are

the followi.ng:

3I.I From Investing Auiities

The Company also acquires various property and equipmurt amounting to P14,'112,219 and
P30,369,024 in202l atd202l,respegtively (see Note.10,). Additionally, short term investments
were acquired amounting to P30,000,000 in 2021 (see Note 9.2).

31.2 From Financing Actirities

During the year, the Company paid cash dividends amounting to P80,000,000 (see Note 25.5).
Proceeds from and repayments to its short term loans amount to P338,67 6,271 ard
P348,436,322, respectively. (See Note l6)

Liabililies l:quil\

Orher loans and Sharecapilal/ Ihtained
pn nriurn ll.rmingr lotal

Balancc at I Janurn 2021 P 18E,O76,631 P 503,5{4,EOl P v\5%2n P \4142t1.76

Chrnges fi!m financing cash ions
Prcceeds tom loans and bomwings

Prccc.ds tomaddnbnal pad-up capnal

Prcc..ds fiom senlcmnt of dertrtiv.s
REpayrDt ofborcwings
Payrni offn nc€ lease lirbilitrs

13E,61627t 338.676,27t

t6 t

25.5

.148,:l]6.122 ) 3.{3J3{.12' )

EO.m.gB){ 80,m0,00 ) (

Tolal chanses liDm fnancins.lsh lloi-s ( So.C{l{,.oi-{j ) ( E9,7@,051 I

The etrect of changes in 6tcrgfu
Changes in fair value

Total equit].rclated other chrnges
Bdmce rl3l Decembcr 2021
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KL Siy & Associates
Assurrn(e Consullanc! Taiation Services

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT PUBLIC AUDITORS
TO ACCOMPANY SEC SCIIEDULES FILED SEPARA.TELY FROM THE BASIC
FINANCIAI, STATEMENTS

The Board ofDirectors
KOLIN PHILIPPINES INTERNATIONAL, INC
First Cavite Industrial Estate, Brgy l-ankaan, Cavite

We have audited the financial statements of KOLIN PHILIPPINES INT'L, INC (the Company)
for tlie year ended December 31, 2021, on which we have rendered our repoa dated April 12,2022.
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fomring an opinion on the basic financial statements

taken as a whole. The applicable supplementary schedules (enumerated in table of contents) of
the Company as of December 31, 2021 and for the year ended, required by the Securities and

Exchange Commission, are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required
part of the basic flnancial statements. The information in such supplementary schedules has been

subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit ofthe basic financial statements and, in
our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken

as a whole.

KL SIY & ASSOCIATES
BOA Accreditation No. 0668

Effective until March 22, 2024
TIN No. 21 5-665-658-000
BIR Accreditation No. 07-10013I -001-2020

Effective until Apnl T, 2023
IC Accreditation No. 06681C (Group B)
Effective until Decernber 31 ,2024

Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) Group B
Accreditation No. 0668-BSP
Effective until December 31, 2024

By:

,1l;lox L
KATHLEEN Tr Ar(VI. STV
Managing Partner
cPA Certificate No. 45337

BOA Accreditation No. 0668
Effective until March 22, 2024

BIR Accreditation No. 07- 100131-001-2020
Effective until April 13, 2023

IC Accreditation No. 45337-IC
Effective until December 31, 2024

Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) Group B
Accreditation No. 45337-BSP
Effective until December 31, 2024

TIN No. 303- l4l -768-000
PTR NO. 8131509, January 11,2022, Pasig City

April 12,2022
Ortigas Center, Pasig City

Unit I 104, Prestige Tower Condominium, F. Ortigas Jr. Road, Ortigas Center, Pasig City 1605

Tel: 634-7685 Telefar: 634-6972 E-mail: klsiv associates@yahoo.com
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KOTIN PHITIPINES INTERNATIONAT, INC

PFRS STANDARDS AND INTERPRETAIIONS APPI.IED

sRc RU|.E 68.r AS AMENDED (20r r )
As ol yeor ended Decembel 31, 2021 ANO 2020

Below ore oll the slandords ond interprelolion s existing in the Philippines ond on indicotion of whether it is

"Adopted", "Not Adopted", ond 'No, Applrcoble'l

tromework lol lhe Prepolollon ond Preienlolion of Flnonclol
Slolemenli

Concepluol Fromework Phose A: Objeclives ond quolitolive
chorocterislics

PfRSs Proctlce stqtemenl Monogemeni Commenlory

Philippine tlnonciql Reporting Slondords

Fist-fime Adoplbn ot Philippine Finonciol
Reporling Srondords

Amendments lo PFRS I ond PAS 27: Cosl of on
lnveslmenf in o Subsidiory, Joinlly Conlro ed
Enfify or Associole

Amendmenls lo PFRS l: AddilionolExemptions
for Firsf-time Adopte5

Amendmenl to PFRS 1: Umited Exemption f.om
Comporolive PFRS 7 Dr3c/osures for Firsltime
Adopters
Amendments to PFRS l: Severe Hypennfloflon
and Removol ol Fixed Dole for Firsf-lime
Adopters

PFRS I
(Revised)

Amendmenls lo PFRS l: Govemmenl Loons

Shore-bo5ed Poymenl

Amendmenls to PFRS 2: Vesting Condrions ond
Concei/otionsPfRS 2

Amendmenls to PFRS 2: Group Cosh-setlied
Shore-bosed Poymeni lronsoclions

PTRS 3
(Revlsed) Business Combinolions

lnsuronce Controcts

PTRS 4
Amendmenis 1o PAS 39 ond PtRS 4: Finonciol
Guoronlee Controcls

PFNS 5
Non-currenl Assels Held for Sole ond
Disconiinued Operolions

PiRS 6
Explorolion tor ond Evoluot'Dn ol Minerol
Resources

PfIII.IPPINE f INANCIAI. REPOiNNG S'ANDARDS, AMENDMENTS

AND INTERPREIATIONS

Eftectlve o! o, December 31. 20 l2

Adopled Nol.Adopted Not
Attpllcoble



SCH I.]I)TiLE I

PHIUPPINE fINANCIAI REPORIING SIANDARDS AND
INTERPREIATIONS

Adopled Noi Adopled
Not

Applicoble

PTRS 7

f inonciol lnstrumenls: Disclosures

Amendmenls lo PAS 39 ond PFRS 7

Reclossillcotion ol Finonciol Assels

Amendmenls to PAS 39 ond PFRS 7:

Reclos5ificolion ol Finonciol Assets - Effeclive
doie ond Tronsition

Amendments to PtRS 7: lmproving Disclosures
obout Finonciol lnstruments

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Tronsfen ol
FinonciolAssets

Amendments lo PFRs 7: Disclosures - Otfselling
Finonciol Assels ond Finonciol Liobilities

Amendments to PFRS 7: Mondolory Elfective
Dote of PFRS 9 ond Tronsition Disclosures

PFRS 8 Operoling Segmenls

PFRS 9

Finonciol lnstruments: Complele ond tinol
Version*

Amendmenls lo PFRS 9: Mondolory Effeclive
dote of PFRS I ond Tronsilion Disclosures

PFRS l0 Consolidoted Finqnciol Stotements

PFRS ] I Joinl Anongemenls

PFRS l2 Disclosure of lnteresls in Olher Enti,ies

PFRS I3 Foir Volue Meosuremenl

Regulotory Delenol of Accounis

PFRS I5 Revenue from Conlrocts wiih Cuslomers

PFRS l6 Leoses

PFRS I7

Philippine Accounting Stqndolds
t{oT

APPllCAALE

PAS I
(Revised)

Presenlolion of Finonciol Slolemenls

Amendmenls to PAS l: Copiiol Disclosures

Amendmenls lo PAS 32: ond PAS l: Pultoble
tinonciol lnstrumenls ond Obligolions Arising on
Liquidolion

PAS 2 lnventories

PFRS I4

lnsuronce Controcls

ADOPTED NOTADOPTED

Amendmenls lo PAS l: Presentolion of ilems ot
Other Comprehensive lncome
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PAS 8
Accounting Policies, Chonges in Accounting
Eslimoles ond Errors

PAS IO Evenls ofter the Reporiing Period

PAS II Conslruclion Conlrocts

PAS 12

lncome Toxes

Amendmenl lo PAS l2: Defened lox: Recovery
of Underlying Assels

PAS 16 Property, Plqnt ond Equipment

Leoses

PAS 'I8 Revenue

PAS I9
(Amended

20r r) Amendmenls to PAS l9: Emp/oyee Benefils -

Def ined Benefit Plons: Employee Conlributions

PAS 20
Accounling for Governmenl Gronis ond
Disclosure of Governmenl Assistonce

PAS 2I

The Effects of Chonges in Foreign Exchonge
Roles
Amendmenl: Net lnvestmenl in o Foreign
Operoiion

PAS 23
(Revlsed)

Bonowing Cosls

PAS 24
(Revlsed) Reloted Porly Disclosures

PAS 26
Accouniing ond Reporling by Retiremeni Eenefil
Plons

PAS 27
(Amended

2Or r)

lnvestments in Associotes

PAS 29
Finonciol Reporling in Hyperinf lolionory
Economies

PAS 3] lnlerests in Joint Venlures

Amendmenls to PAS 32 ond PAS | : Pufioble
Finoncio/ ,nstrumenls ond Ob/igotions Arising on
Liquidofion

Amendment to PAS 32:. Classiticolion of Righfs
Issues

Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Finonciol
Assels ond Finonciol Liobilities

PAS 33 Eornings per Shqre

PAS 34 lnterim Finonciol Repoding

PAS 36 lmpoirment of Assets

Slotemenl of Cosh FlowsPAS 7

PAS 'I7

Employee Benelits

Consolidoted ond Seporole Finonciol
Slotements

PAS 28
(Amended)

Finonciol lnstruments: Disclosure ond
Presen lo lion

PAS 32

I
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PAS 37
Provisions, Contingenl Liobilities ond Coniingenl
Assels

PAS 38 lnlongible Assels

PAS 39

Finonciol Instrumenis: Recognilion ond
Meosuremen,

Amendments lo PAS 39:Ironsition ond lniliol
Recognilion of finoncio/ Assels ond finoncioi
Liobi/ities

Amendments to PAS 39: Cosh F/ow Hedge
Accounting of Forecosf lnlrogro up f ronsoclians

Amendments lo PAS 39: Ihe Foi volue Oplion

Amendments to PAS 39 ond PFRS 4:Finoncio/
Guoronlee Controcts

Amendments lo PAS 39 ond PtRS /
Rec/ossilicolion of Finoncio/ Assefs

Amendmenls lo PAS 39 ond PFRS 7:

Reclossifrcotion of Finoncio/ Assels - Effeclive
Dale ond frcnsition

Amendmenls to Philippine lnlerpretolion IFRIC-9
ond PAS 39: Embedded Dedvolives

Amendmenl lo PAS 39: Erg,b/e Hedged /lems

PAS 40 lnveslment Properly

PAS 4] Agriculture

lfRlC Inlerpretqtiont ADOPTED NOTADOPTfD
t{oT

APPUCABLE

ItRtc I Chonges in txhling Decommissioning,
Restorotion ond Similor Liobililies

Members'Shore in Co-operotive Enlities ond
Similor lnstruments

ItRrc 4

ItRtc 5
Righls lo lnteresls orising from Decommissioning,
Resiorotion ond Envkonmenlol Rehobilitotion
Funds

ItRtc 6
Liobilities orising fiom Porlicipoling in o Specitic
Morkel - Wosle Eleclricol ond Eleclronic
Equipment

trRtc 7
Applying the Reslotement App(ooch under PAS

29 tinonciol Reporiing in Hyperinflolionory
Economies

tfRtc I

Reossessmenl ol Embedded Derivolives

Amendments to Philippine lnterpretotion ltRlC-9
ond PAS 39: Embedded Derivolives

Amendments to Philippine lnlerpretotion IFRIC 9
ond Revised IFRS 3: Scope ot IFRIC 9 ond revised
IFRS 3

ItRlc r0 lnleim finonciol Repotling ond lmpairmenl

ItRtc r2 Service Concession Anongemenls

llRrc 2

Determining whelher on Anongement Contoins
o Leose



SCHEDT]LE I

tfRtc 13 Cuslomer Loyolty Proorommes

* Not early adopted

trRtc l4 Amendmenls lo Philippine lnlerprelotions IFRIC-
14. Prepoymenls al o Minimum Funding
Requirement

trRtc't6 Hedges ol o Nel lnveslmenl in o Foreign
Operotion

tfRtc t7 Dislribulions of Non-cosh Assets 10 Owners

rrRtc 18 Tronsfers ol Asseis lrom Cuslomers

lrRtc l9 Extinguishing Finonciol Liobilities wilh Equily
lnslruments
Stripping Costs in the Produclion Phose of o
Surloce Mine

tfRtc 2I Levies

Foreign Currency Tronsoctions ond Advonce
Considerotion

rrRtc 23 Uncerloinly over lncome Tox Treolmenis

SIC lnlerpretollons . . ADOPTfD NOT ADOPTEO
ttoT

APPLICABI.E

stc-7 lnlroduction of the Euro

src- r0
Govemment Assistonce - No Specific Relolion to
Operoting Activilies

src- 12
Consolidolion - Speciol Purpose Entities

Amendment to SIC- l2:ScopeotSlC l2

..,ointly Controlled Entilies - Non-Monetory
Contributions by Venlurers

stc- 15 Operoting Leoses - lncentives

src-25
lncome Toxes - Chonges in the Tox Stolus of on
Entily or ils Shoreholders

stc-27

stc-29 Service Concession Arrongemenls: Disclosures.

src-31
Revenue - Borter Tronsoclion lnvolving
Advertisinq Services

src-32 lntongible Assels - Web Site Costs

stc-33
Consolidolion ond Equity Meihod - Polentiol
voting Rights ond ollocolion of Ownership
lnieresl

The Limil on o Defined Benefit Assel, Minimum
Funding Requtemenls ond lheir lnteroction

rrRrc 20

ItRtc 22

src- t 3

Evoluoiing the Substonce of Tronsoctions
lnvolving ihe Legol Form of o Leose


